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PART |

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act Safe Harba Statement

Certain statements included herein and in othesrte@nd public filings made by RCM Technologies,. I(“RCM” or the “Company”) are
forward-looking within the meaning of the PrivatecBrities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Theseviard{ooking statements include, withc
limitation, statements regarding the adoption bgifbesses of new technology solutions; the use binbases of outsourced solutions, such as
those offered by the Company, in connection witthsadoption; the Company’s business initiatives gnaoavth strategies; and the outcome of
litigation (at both the trial and appellate levetsjolving the Company. Readers are cautioneddhelh forward-looking statements, as well as
others made by the Company, which may be identlfied/ords such as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticgte,” “continue,” “estimate,” “project,”
“intend,” “believe,”and similar expressions, are only predictions aadsabject to risks and uncertainties that couldseahe Company's actt
results and financial position to differ materiafgm such statements. Such risks and uncertaiit@ude, without limitation: (i)
unemployment and general economic conditions affg¢he provision of information technology and ewgring services and solutions and
the placement of temporary staffing personnelilii® Company's ability to continue to attract,rtrand retain personnel qualified to meet the
requirements of its clients; (iii) the Company'digbto identify appropriate acquisition candidafeomplete such acquisitions and successfully
integrate acquired businesses; (iv) uncertaingganding pro forma financial information and thelertying assumptions relating to
acquisitions and acquired businesses; (v) uncéigairegarding amounts of deferred considerati@ahesarnout payments to become payable to
former shareholders of acquired businesses; (vigtaé effects on the market price of the Compasgrismon stock due to the potential resale
into the market of significant amounts of commarckt (vii) the adverse effect a potential decréadée trading price of the Company's
common stock would have upon the Company's altdigcquire businesses through the issuance aéétgrisies; (viii) the Company's ability
obtain financing on satisfactory terms; (ix) théamece of the Company upon the continued servidesaxecutive officers; (x) the Company's
ability to remain competitive in the markets thagarves; (xi) the Company's ability to maintaswihemployment insurance premiums and
workers compensation premiums; (xii) the risk @ficls being made against the Company associatecpvatiiding temporary staffing

services; (xiii) the Company's ability to managgn#ficant amounts of information and periodicallpand and upgrade its information
processing capabilities; (xiv) the Company's apiiit remain in compliance with federal and statgevand hour laws and regulations; (xv)
uncertainties in predictions as to the future fieedhe Companys services; (xvi) uncertainties relating to theedition of costs and expense
each of the Company’s operating segments; (xvll)dbsts of conducting and the outcome of litigatiolving the Company, and the
applicability of insurance coverage with respecany such litigation; (xviii) obligations relatirtg indemnities and similar agreements entered
into in connection with the Company’s businessvi@is; and (xix) other economic, competitive arvgrnmental factors affecting the
Company's operations, markets, products and setviReaders are cautioned not to place undue celiam these forward-looking statements,
which speak only as of the date made. The Compadgrtakes no obligation to publicly release thseilts of any revision of these forward-
looking statements to reflect these trends or onstances after the date they are made or to refleaiccurrence of unanticipated events.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

RCM Technologies, Inc . is a premier provider ofibess and technology solutions designed to enteamtenaximize the operational
performance of its customers through the adaptaiwhdeployment of advanced information technolaigy engineering services. RCM is
also a provider of specialty healthcare servicanar health care institutions and educationalifeess. RCM has been an innovative leader in
the design, development, and delivery of thesei@eswto commercial and government sectors for 4bsyeOver the years, the Company has
developed and assembled an attractive, diversextedsive portfolio of capabilities, service offegs and delivery options, established a
proven record of performance and credibility, andtlan efficient pricing structure. This combiiat offers clients a compelling value
proposition with the potential to substantially elecate the successful attainment of their busiobgctives

RCM consists of three operating segments: Inforomafiechnology, Engineering and Specialty HealthreC3arvices. The Company’s
Information Technology, or IT, segment providesegptise business solutions, application servicésstructure solutions, competitive
advantage & productivity solutions, life sciencetutions and other selected vertical market speoffierings. RCM'’s Engineering segment
provides engineering and design, engineering aisatgghnical writing and technical support sersicdhe Company’s Specialty Health Care
Services segment provides health care professigmatsarily nurses and therapists.

The Company services some of the largest natiomhirdernational companies in North America as \aslh lengthy roster of Fortune 1000
and mid-sized businesses in such industries asspace/Defense, Energy, Financial Services, Lifer#as, Manufacturing & Distribution, the
Public Sector and Technology. RCM believes it isff@ range of solutions that fosters long-ternntlielationships, affords cross-selling
opportunities, and minimizes the Company’s depecg@m any single technology or industry sector.MXeglls and delivers its services
through a network of 26 offices in selected regittmsughout North America.

The Company is a Nevada corporation organized #119he address of its principal executive offee@500 McClellan Avenue, Suite 350,
Pennsauken, NJ 08109-4613.

During the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011, apprately 44.2% of RCM'’s total revenues were derifredn IT services, 39.8% from
Engineering services, and the remaining 16.0% f&pacialty Health Care services.

Demand for the Company’s services can be signifigampacted by changes in the general level ohecooic activity and particularly
technology spending. During periods of reducedhendc activity, such as the environment in the BadiStates and the world in general since
approximately mid-2007 and continuing through fls2@10, the Company may also be subject to incrbpseing pressure in its markets due
to reduced spending by clients and potential diefithe Company. Extended periods of weaknetigieconomy can have a material adverse
impact on the Company’s business and results afatipas. Accordingly, the Company's operationsehlasen adversely impacted by the
continuing economic downturn that began in the eidd 2007.

Industry Overview

Businesses today face intense competition, thdestgd of constant technological change and theinggteed for business process
optimization. To address these issues and to ctampere effectively, companies are continually eatihg the need for implementing
innovative solutions to upgrade their systems,iappbns, and processes. As a result, the alnifign organization to integrate and align
advanced technologies with new business objecisvestical.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Industry Overview (Continued)

Although most companies recognize the importanagptimizing their systems, applications and proesese compete in today’s challenging
environment, the process of designing, developimjimplementing business and technology solutiefmecoming increasingly complex. The
Company believes that many businesses are focusegtwrn on investment analysis in prioritizingitheitiatives. The Company believes tt
as a consequence, over the past few years, corsgaaie elected to defer, redefine or cancel investsnin new systems, software, and
solutions and have focused on making extended amd gffective use of previous technological invesits.

On the other hand, the current economic environroealienges many companies to integrate and mar@gputing environments consisting
of multiple computing platforms, operating systenegtiabases and networking protocols and off-th#-sbéware applications to support
business objectives. Companies also need to kaspwith new technology developments, which oftgadly render existing equipment and
internal skills obsolete. At the same time, exadértonomic factors have caused many organizat®ftecus on core competencies and trim
workforces in the IT management area. Accordintjflgse organizations often lack the quantity, dqualnd variety of IT skills necessary to
design and support IT solutions. IT managers haeged with supporting increasingly complex systamd applications of significant strate
value, while working under budgetary, personnel expkrtise constraints within their own organizasio

The Company believes its target market for IT smwiis among middle-market companies, which tylyidatk the time and technical
resources to satisfy all of their IT needs intdgnallhese companies commonly require sophisticarperienced IT assistance to achieve their
business objectives and often rely on IT serviawigers to help implement and manage their systafmwvever, many middle-market
companies rely on multiple providers for their Idedls. Generally, the Company believes that thianee on multiple providers results from
the fact that larger IT service providers do nogéh these companies, while smaller IT service iglerg, which do target these companies, lack
sufficient breadth of services or industry knowledg satisfy all of these companies' needs. Thapgaoy believes this reliance on multiple
service providers creates multiple relationshid gre more difficult and less cost-effective tonage than a single relationship and can
adversely influence the quality and compatibilify® solutions. RCM is structured to provide middharket companies a single source for
their IT needs.

The Company’s Engineering group continues to faguareas of growth within the energy and aerospatestries.

In recent years, many businesses have been advamgelcted by higher oil prices, and for that aadaus other reasons, there has been
growing sentiment around the world for the develeptrof alternative sources of energy, includingr@emed interest in nuclear power. Over
the same period, there has been a significantasergn spending in the United States in the aecespad defense industries due largely to a
strengthening of the military and homeland securitsesponse to armed conflicts, geo-political shend the threat of terrorism. The
combination of higher energy prices and increas#itany spending has created numerous businessrappties for service providers,
especially those engaged in engineering operatioN®rth America and abroad.

In the healthcare services industry, a shortagaeitfes and other medical personnel in the UnitateShas led to increases in business activity
for health care service companies, including then@any’s Specialty Healthcare Group. Due in pagrt@aging population and improved
medical technology, the demand for selected healta professionals is expected to continue ovenéixéseveral years.

Business Strategy

RCM is dedicated to providing solutions to meetlisnts’ business needs by delivering informatechnology and engineering services. The
Company’s objective is to be a recognized leadepetialized professional consulting services ahations in major markets throughout
North America. The Company is adapting operatinatasgies to achieve this objective. Key elemefits growth and operating strategies

as follows:




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Growth Strategy

Promote Full Life Cycle Solution Capability

The Company promotes a full life cycle solution ahifity to its customers. The goal of the fulkli€ycle solution strategy is to fully address a
client’s project implementation cycle at each stafjigs development and deployment. This enthigs€@ompany working with its clients from
the initial conceptualization of a project throuthhdesign and project execution, and extending @amgoing management and support of the
delivered product. RCM'’s strategy is to build gais and solutions offerings selectively, utilizitgyextensive resource base.

The Company believes that the effective executidhie strategy will generate improved margins treisting resources. The completion of
this service-offering continuum is intended to affthe Company the opportunity to strengthen largatclient relationships that will further
contribute to a more predictable revenue stream.

In addition to a full life cycle solution offeringhe Company continues to focus on transitionirtig gher value oriented services in an effort
to increase its margins on its various serviceslifrelative to lower value services) and genememue that is more sustainable. The Com
believes this transition is accomplished by purgudditional vertical market specific solutionscmnjunction or combination with longer-term
based solutions, through expansion of its clielatti@ships and by pursuing strategic alliancesartherships.

Achieve Internal Growth

The Company continues to promote its internal ghosttategies which we designed to better serv€tmpany’s customers, generate higher
revenue and achieve greater operating efficiendietional and regional sales management prograwe been designed and implemented to
segregate clients by vertical market and natiooebants to advance a value added services fochis. pfocess is improving account
coordination with the intent to allow clients tortedit from deeper industry knowledge and the Corggarmaximize major account
opportunities.

RCM provides an orientation program in which satesagers and professionals receive relevant infiasmabout Company operations.

RCM has adopted an industry-centric approach essahd marketing. This initiative contemplates dients within the same industry sectors
tend to have common business challenges. It theraflows the Company to present and deliver eréthmalue to those clients in the vertical
markets in which RCM has assembled the greatedt qrerience. RCM’s consultants continue to acqoicgect experience that offers
differentiated awareness of the business challethgé<lients in that industry are facing. Thigaiment also facilitates and creates additional
cross-selling opportunities. The Company belighésstrategy will lead to greater account penitnaand enhanced client relationships.

Operational strategies contributing to RCM’s intdrproductivity include the delineation of certaiew solutions practice areas in markets
where its clients had historically known the Comypans a contract service provider. The formatiotheke practice areas should facilitate the
flow of project opportunities and the delivery abct-based solutions.

PursueSelective Strategic Acquisitions

The industry in which the Company operates consrtoebe highly fragmented, and the Company plam®minue to selectively assess
opportunities to make strategic acquisitions af @pportunities are presented to the Company. Tdmpgany's acquisition strategy is designed
to broaden the scope of services and technical etenpies and grow its full life cycle solution chjpiéies. In considering acquisitions, the
Company focuses principally on companies withg@hinologies or market segments RCM has targetestriategic value enhancement, (ii)
margins that are accretive to existing marging, €kperienced management personnel, (iv) subsiamdwth prospects and (v) sellers who
desire to join the Company's management team.efinrand provide incentives for management cddtguired companies, the Company has
generally structured a significant portion of tlegjaisition price in the form of multi-tiered consi@tion based on growth of operating
profitability of the acquired company over a twddor year period.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Operating Strategy

Develop and Maintain Strong Customer Relationships

The Company seeks to develop and maintain straegaictive customer relationships by anticipating otusing on its customers' needs. The
Company emphasizes a relationship-oriented apprimalshisiness, rather than the transaction or assgtoriented approach that the
Company believes is used by many of its competitdiss industry-centric strategy is designed tovalRCM to expand further its

relationships with clients in RCM'’s targeted sestor

To develop close customer relationships, the Coryipgmactice managers regularly meet with bothtexgsand prospective clients to help
design solutions and identify the resources netuledecute their strategies. The Company's masaiss maintain close communications
with their customers during each project and oor@going basis after its completion. The Compariietes that this relationship-oriented
approach can result in greater customer satisfacthalditionally, the Company believes that by abbrating with its customers in designing
business solutions, it can generate new opporésniti cross-sell additional services that the Campas to offer. The Company focuses on
providing customers with qualified individuals eatms of experts compatible with the business nekitls customers and makes a concerted
effort to follow the progress of such relationship&nsure their continued success.

Attract and Retain Highly Qualified Consultants drethnical Resources

The Company believes it has been successful iactittg and retaining qualified consultants and i@ators by (i) providing stimulating and
challenging work assignments, (ii) offering comped wages, (iii) effectively communicating wittsitandidates, (iv) providing selective
training to maintain and upgrade skills and (vyyaiing the needs of its customers with appropriat&lijed personnel. The Company believe
has been successful in retaining these personedhdeart to its use of practice managers who adécdted to maintaining contact with, and
monitoring the satisfaction levels of, the Compamynsultants while they are on assignment.

Centralize Administrative Functions

The Company continues to improve its operationfidiehcies by integrating general and administefivnctions at the corporate or regional
level, and reducing or eliminating redundant fumies formerly performed at smaller branch offic&his enables the Company to realize
savings and synergies and to control and mongasperations efficiently, as well as to quicklyeigtate new acquisitions. It also allows local
branches to focus more on growing their local ofena.

To accomplish this, the Company’s financial repatand accounting systems are centralized in tmep@ay’s operational headquarters in
Parsippany, NJ. The systems have been configaralibiv the performance of all back office funcsopimcluding payroll, project managem:
project cost accounting, billing, human resourcmiadstration and financial reporting and consolidat The Company anticipates upgrading
its financial reporting and accounting system platf sometime in the fiscal year ending Decembef81.1.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Information Technology

The Company’s IT segment is comprised of two bussirgroups — the IT Consulting Business Group aedTtSolutions Business Group. The
IT Consulting Business Group consists of threeress units in North America — the Eastern Regioe Gentral Region and the Western
Region. The Solutions Business Group consisterektbusiness units — IT Enterprise Managemengrarise Business Solutions and Life
Sciences.

The RCM Enterprise Business Solutions Graugdre business mission is to continue its stratiegnsformation designed to focus the Com
on developing proprietary customized solutions iatellectual property by bundling software, systetosls and services into integrated
business and technology solutions.

RCM’s sector knowledge coupled with technical andibess process experience enable the Compang\@erstrategic planning and
direction, rigorous project execution, and manageraad support services for an entire projectdifele. RCM has successfully completed
multimillion-dollar projects in a variety of indugtverticals using time-tested methodologies thahage strict budgets, timelines and quality
metrics.

Among those IT services provided by RCM to itsligeare:

Enterprise Business Solutions

Application Services

Infrastructure Solutions

Competitive Advantage & Productivity Solutions
Life Sciences Solutions

The Company believes that its ability to delivefoimation technology solutions across a wide rasfgechnical platforms provides an
important competitive advantage. RCM ensuresith@bnsultants have the expertise and skills neb¢al&eep pace with rapidly evolving
information technologies. The Company'’s strategipimaintain expertise and acquire knowledge itiipte technologies so it can offer its
clients non-biased technology solutions best sudeteir business needs.

The Company provides its IT services through a remalb flexible delivery methods. These include agement consulting engagements,
project management of client efforts, project innpdatation of client initiatives, outsourcing, bath and off site, and a full complement of
resourcing alternatives.

As of January 1, 2011, the Company had assigneacgippately 530 information technology employees andsultants to its customers.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Engineering

The Company’s Engineering segment consists of thus@ess units — Engineering Services and Projeotser Systems Services USA and
Power Systems Services Canada. The Engineerimic8giand Projects unit includes Aerospace, Manufeng and Industrial Engineering
divisions. The Power Systems units focus primasiiythe nuclear power, fossil fuel and electriditytindustries.

RCM provides a full range of Engineering servigeduding Engineering & Design, Engineering Analy&sgineer-Procure-Construct,
Configuration Management, Hardware/Software Vaiata& Verification, Quality Assurance, Technical Miltg & Publications,

Manufacturing Process Planning & Improvement, Rty Centered Maintenance (RCM), Component & Eomént Testing and Risk
Management Engineering. Engineering services rernéaged at the site of the client or, less freqlyerat the Company’s own facilities.

The Company believes that the deregulation of thigies industry and the aging of nuclear poweargb offer the Company an opportunity to
capture a greater share of professional servicgparject management requirements of the utilitidsistry both in engineering services and
through cross-selling of its information technol@grvices. Heightened competition, deregulatiahrapid technological advances are forcing
the utilities industry to make fundamental chanigess business process. These pressures havestiethfhe utilities industry to focus on
internal operations and maintenance activitiestandcreasingly outsource their personnel requirgsieAdditionally, the Company believes
that competitive performance demands from dereiguahould increase the importance of informatechhology to this industry. The
Company believes that its expertise and strongioalships with certain customers within the us@giindustry position the Company to be a
leading provider of professional services to thkties industry.

The Company provides its engineering services titanumber of delivery methods. These includeagead tasks and resources, complete
project services, outsourcing, both on and off;sited a full complement of resourcing alternatives.

As of January 1, 2011, the Company had assigneagippately 450 engineering and technical employe®sconsultants to its customers.
Specialty Health Care

The Company’s Specialty Health Care Group speeslia long-term and short-term staffing as wekxescutive search and placement for the
following fields: rehabilitation (physical therafss occupational therapists and speech languagelpgtsts), nursing, managed care, allied
health care, health care management and medide¢ affipport. The specialty health care group pleviservices to hospitals, long-term care
facilities, schools, sports medicine facilities gnvate practices. Services include in-patientpatient, sub-acute and acute care, multilingual
speech pathology, rehabilitation, and geriatridigic, and adult day care. Typical engagemeititgierange from three to six months or are
on a day-to-day shift basis.

As of January 1, 2011, the Company had assignezppately 420 specialty health care services persbto its customers.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Branch Offices

The Company's organization consists of 26 branfibesflocated in the United States, Canada, PirRido and Ireland. The locations and
services of each of the branch offices are seh fiarthe table below.

NUMBER OF SERVICES
LOCATION OFFICES PROVIDED(1)
USA
California 2 IT, HC
Connecticu 1 E
Florida 1 HC
Maryland 1 IT
Massachuseti 1 IT
Michigan 3 IT,E
Minnesota 1 IT
New Jerse 3 IT,E
New York 2 IT, E, HC
Ohio 1 IT
Pennsylvanii 1 HC
Rhode Islanc 1 E
Texas 1 IT
Wisconsin 2 IT, E
21
CANADA 3 IT, E
PUERTO RICC 1 IT
IRELAND 1 IT

(1) Services provided are abbreviated as follows:
IT - Information Technology
E - Engineering
HC - Specialty Health Care

Branch offices are primarily located in marketst tine Company believes have strong growth prosgecty and Engineering services. The
Company's branches are operated in a decentratimé@preneurial manner with most branch officesrafing as independent profit

centers. The Company's branch managers are giyeificant autonomy in the daily operations of theispective offices and, with respect to
such offices, are responsible for overall guidaate supervision, budgeting and forecasting, saldswarketing strategies, pricing, hiring and
training. Branch managers are paid on a perforexased compensation system designed to motivat@aimagers to maximize growth and
profitability.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Branch Offices (Continued)

The Company is domiciled in the United States amdeégments operate in the United States, CanadaoFRico and Ireland. Revenues for
fiscal year ended January 1, 2011 and total abyegeographic area as of January 1, 2011 are lasvio(in thousands):

Total
Revenue: Assets
United State! $131,89! $69,93:
Canade 26,85( 11,73¢
Puerto Ricc 3,15¢ 1,01C
Ireland 12C 337
$162,02; $83,01:

The Company believes that substantial portiond@tiuying decisions made by users of the Comgassfvices are made on a local or regi
basis and that the Company's branch offices mésh @ompete with local and regional providers.c8ithe Company's branch managers are in
the best position to understand their local markats customers often prefer local providers, them@any believes that a decentralized
operating environment enhances operating performand contributes to employee and customer sdiisfiac

From its headquarters locations in New JerseyCmpany provides its branch offices with centraliaeiministrative, marketing, finance,
MIS, human resources and legal support. Centchliziministrative functions minimize the adminigiratburdens on branch office managers
and allow them to spend more time focusing on satelsmarketing and practice development activities.

The Company's principal sales offices typically dvane general manager, one sales manager, thseesales people, several technical
delivery or practice managers and several recrlit&he general managers report to regional viesigents who are responsible for ensuring
that performance goals are achieved. The Compeagisnal vice presidents meet frequently to discbgst practices” and ways to increase
the Company's cross selling of its professionalises. The Company’s practice managers meet gealtglto strategize, maintain continuity,
and identify developmental needs and cross-sefipygprtunities.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing efforts are conducted at ited bnd or regional level through the Company'svaek of branch offices. The Company
emphasizes long-term personal relationships wigtazners that are developed through regular assessineustomer requirements and
proactive monitoring of personnel performance. Tloepany's sales personnel make regular visitgistieg and prospective customers. N
customers are obtained through active sales prageant referrals. The Company encourages its eraefotp participate in national and
regional trade associations, local chambers of ceroenand other civic associations. The Comparksseedevelop strategic partnering
relationships with its customers by providing cogt@nsive solutions for all aspects of a custonmgfidsmation technology, engineering and
other professional services needs. The Compangecdrates on providing carefully screened profesdowith the appropriate skills in a
timely manner and at competitive prices. The Camggagularly monitors the quality of the servicesvided by its personnel and obtains
feedback from its customers as to their satisfactith the services provided.

The Company has elevated the importance of workiitly and developing its partner alliances with wealogy firms. Partner programs are in
place with firms RCM has identified as strategig@thportant to the completeness of the servicerioffeof the Company. Relations have been
established with firms such as ADP, Harland Finaln¢BM, Mercury, Microsoft, Oracle and QAD, amoathers. The partner programs may
be managed either at a national level from RCMiporate offices or at a regional level from itsraria offices.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Sales and Marketing (Continued)

The Companyg larger representative customers include 3M, A&Bmark, Bristol Myers Squibb, Bruce Power, Dow @tieal USA, Entergy
Exelon Nuclear, FlightSafety International, LillgldCaribe, Mercury Insurance Group, Microsoft, Néark City Department of Education,
New York Power Authority, Ontario Power GeneratiBfizer, Pragmatics, PSE&G, QualxServ, United Tebdbgies Corporation, U.$
Department of the Treasury, Vermont Yankee Nudkeawer, Warner Chilcott and Wells Fargo. The Comsarves Fortune 1000 companies
and many middle market clients. The Company'sicglships with these customers are typically forraethe customers’ local or regional
level and from time to time, when appropriate hat ¢orporate level for national accounts.

During the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011, dniechnologies Corporation and Bruce Power accaiotel3.3% and 10.8% of the
Company'’s revenues, respectively. No other cust@oeounted for 10% or more of the Company’s revemu¢hat period. The Company's
five, ten and twenty largest customers accountedgproximately 36.9%, 44.1% and 54.6%, respegcti\afithe Company's revenues for the
fiscal year ended January 1, 2011.

Recruiting and Training

The Company devotes a significant amount of timir@sources, primarily at the branch level, to fimgg training and retaining its
professional personnel. Full-time recruiters milthe Company's proprietary databases of avaitskonnel, which are cross-indexed by
competency and skill to match potential candidati#s the specific project requirements of the costo. The qualified personnel in the
databases are identified through numerous acsyiineluding networking, referrals, trade shows, fairs, schools, newspaper and trade jot
advertising, Internet recruiting services and tloen@any’s website.

The Company believes that a significant elemethefCompany's success in retaining qualified ceastd and contract personnel is the
Company's use of consultant relationship managetsexhnical practice managers. Consultant relskipp managers are qualified Company
personnel dedicated to maintaining on-site contattt, and monitoring the satisfaction levels of thompany's consultants and contract
personnel while they are on assignment. Practeeagers are consulting managers responsible faethaical development and career
development of the Company’s technical personndéliwihe defined practice areas. The Company gesvtechnical training and skills
development through vendor-sponsored courses, dempased training tools and on the job mentorirog@mms.

Information Systems

RCM has continued to engage in strategic initiatiteeimprove upon its ability to secure data, dgliservices and improve on its
communication infrastructure.

RCM has partnered with vendors like AT&T, Microsdtisco, SAP and DELL deploying their business Sohs internally. All perimeter
devices have been standardized on Cisco hardweeenal devices (Servers, Desktops, laptops, panetc) are DELL based; with AT&T
communication lines throughout the enterprise liftating centralized management and support ofitevork.

RCM has upgraded its perimeter network and WAN iggcture throughout the US and Canada, to a seauntealized model on Private
Network Transport (PNT /AVPN) AT&T circuits, utilimg Multiple Packet Label Switching (MPLS) transpprotocol. The hub datacenter

its operational headquarters has been outfittel rgtlundant fiber circuits from AT&T and Optimunghitpath utilizing Border gateway
Protocol (BGP) for automatic failover. Redundangwialls, routers and switching architecture pr&egainst hardware failure. Access to the
network is only allowed via SSL or IPSec 3DES pcots.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Information Systems (Continued)

The move to service oriented architecture facdiathe implementation of the Cisco Voice over I)(F) solution which is currently deployed
throughout RCM’s offices. This enterprise solutibased on Cisco Call Manager, Unity voicemail, MibbManager, Meeting Place, Fax
Server and Video Presence has effectively unifileB@M offices in the US and Canada. Summary ofdfigminclude four digit extension calls
between RCM offices, email and voicemail unificatigsoft and mobile phone integration, video and e@fferencing, central and email
enabled faxing.

RCM’s messaging architecture is currently basetherMicrosoft Exchange 2007 and Cisco Unity platforhe Microsoft Exchange platform
is scheduled to be upgraded to Exchange 2010 somtithe fiscal year ending December 31, 2011e durrent mail system is comprised of
redundant mail routing servers and clustered maiflsyvers attached to a Storage Area Network (SBNY messaging platform has the
current capacity of six Terabytes (TB), with th@ahility of scaling to 18 Terabytes (TB). In additito mail storage being sized for VOIP
integration, web access to the mail server is afibwed via secure HTTPs protocol. Augmenting thressaging architecture is a mail archiv
solution by GFI to accommodate disaster recovargmiance and litigation requirements.

The Company has upgraded the ERP hardware, Applicahd Operating system, to accommodate its gpweaeds. The branch offices of
Company are networked to the corporate officepxilaate circuits, which enable the ERP applicatimbe accessed securely at all operational
locations. The ERP system supports Company-wigeatipns such as payroll, billing, human resourpesject systems, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, all general ledger accountingcandolidation reporting functionality. The Compdras concluded that an upgrade of the
current version to SAP ECC6QO is the best fit folNlREbusiness needs and anticipates beginning aradpgometime in the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2011.

The Company also has Autotime and TES, automates and attendance systems, which augments the 8RRapplication by catering to the
needs of its diverse business offerings and diggibworkforce. The applications are housed dweettiered DELL server architecture, and
are currently servicing Canadian and US offices.

The Company'’s internet presence is an integralgfats strategic initiative to improve visibilitgnd contextualize its business offerings. The
first pilot rollout of a new site is scheduled farly in the fiscal year ending December 31, 2@8&&king to make the site more interactive,
improve web analytics, Search Engine Optimizataord enhanced user experience.

The Company is utilizing JobDiva, an applicationvéee provider (ASP) solution. Recruiting (e.g. @atate) and Sales (e.g. Requirement)
tracking. The integrated solution allows RCM tacleall client requirements on an enterprise lelgb Diva permits RCM recruiters to search
multiple sources (e.g. job boards) to identify amatch suitable candidates for an opportunity odnéeb Diva allows RCM to build and
maintain a proprietary database of prequalifiedladates, thereby enhancing our ability to respamdldy to client demands. Furthermore, the
solution increases visibility internally to salesrgonnel and the management team to manage ctieritips not only on a localized, but a
national basis. Customized reporting and quenrgabiifies allow RCM management to monitor persorpeformance and client
responsiveness. All data and information is acbéssia a web portal.

In the interest of consolidation and being gree@VRis currently deploying virtualization technolofigpm VMware and Microsoft. The target

is to achieve a 60 percent reduction in serverpiaot by late in the fiscal year ending DecemberZ111, as well as to capitalize on the
efficiencies of V-motion, fault tolerance, high #ahility and management, which are an integrat pathis technology.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Safeguards Business, Disaster and Contingency Planning

RCM has implemented a number of safeguards to girtite Company from various system-related riskfuoing a warm data center disaster
recovery site, redundant telecommunications angesearystems architecture, multi-tiered server aggktbp backup infrastructure, and data
center physical and environmental controls. Initiaid RCM has developed disaster recovery / bssiro@ntinuity procedures for all offices.

Given the significant amount of data generatedhén@ompany’s key processes including recruitinigssgayroll and customer

invoicing, RCM has established redundant procedduestioning on a daily basis, within the Compangtimary data center. This redunda
should mitigate the risks related to hardware, iapfibn and data loss by utilizing the conceptiaé differential backups of servers and
desktops to Storage Area (SAN) devices on its atlAN, culminating in offsite tape storage at adeépendent facility. Besides the local t
backup rotation of branch office systems, datdsis eeplicated to SAN devices in Parsippany to @shibusiness continuity. Controls within
data center environment ensure that all systempragetively monitored and data is properly arctiive

Additionally, RCM has contracted and brokered styat relationships with third-party vendors to migtecovery objectives in the event of a
system disruption. For example, comprehensiveigetgvel agreements provided by AT&T and CiscoR@M’s data circuits and network
devices, guarantee minimal outages as well as metredundancy and scalability. The Disaster Reppsie, located at the corporate office in
Pennsauken, NJ, provides WAN, ERP, VOIP, file, epplon and messaging services should the primaty denter facility at Parsippany, NJ,
become inoperable.

The Company'’s ability to protect its data assetiresy damage from fire, power loss, telecommunicetifailures, and facility violations is
critical. The Company uses Websense mail manadeseerice to filter all emails destined for the RCMomain before being delivered to the
corporate mail servers. Websense, web filteringatss been deployed to safeguard the enterprise finalicious internet content. The
deployment of virus, spam, and patch managemetntaisrextends from the perimeter network to allkiess and is centrally monitored and
managed. In addition to the virus and malwareradgitan Intrusion Protection System (IPS) monitond alerts on changes in network traffic
patterns as well as known hostile signatures.

The Company maintains a disaster recovery planathidines the recovery time / point objectives (RTRPO), organization structure, roles
procedures, including site addendum disaster garall of its key operating offices. Corporatep€&rsonnel regulate the maintenance and
integrity of backed-up data throughout the Company.

Competition

The market for IT and engineering services is higldmpetitive and is subject to rapid change. lesmarket demand has shifted, many
software companies have adopted tactics to puewéss and consulting offerings making them dighpetitors when in the past they may
have been alliance partners. Primary competitarside participants from a variety of market segisencluding publicly and privately held
firms, systems consulting and implementation firapgplication software firms, service groups of comep equipment companies, facilities
management companies, general management condirtirsgand staffing companies. In addition, ther@any competes with its clients'
internal resources, particularly where these resgsurepresent a fixed cost to the client. Suchpsdition may impose additional pricing
pressures on the Company.

The Company believes its principal competitive adages in the IT and engineering services marlodtidie: strong relationships with existing
clients, a long-term track record with over 1,00i8rds, a broad range of services, technical eigeerknowledge and experience in multiple
industry sectors, quality and flexibility of sergiaresponsiveness to client needs and speed iredelj IT solutions.

Additionally, the Company competes for suitablewasition candidates based on its differentiatedusition model, its entrepreneurial and
decentralized operating philosophy, and its stramgorate-level support and resources.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Seasonality

The Company’s operating results can be affectetthéwgeasonal fluctuations in client expendituegpenditures in the Information
Technology and Engineering segments can be nebaimpacted during the first quarter of the yearantclients are finalizing their

budgets. Quarterly results generally fluctuateethelng on, among other things, the number of lgjlilays in a quarter and the seasonality of
clients’ businesses. The business is also affdntate timing of holidays and seasonal vacatiotepas, generally resulting in lower revenues
and gross profit in the fourth quarter of each y&xtreme weather conditions may also affect deniatide first and fourth quarters of the year
as certain clients’ facilities are located in gexgaric areas subject to closure or reduced hoursodinelement weather. The Company
generally experiences an increase in its costlesmd a corresponding decrease in gross prafigesss margin percentage in the first and
second fiscal quarters of each year as a resuoitsetting certain state and federal employmentates and related salary limitations. Also, the
Company’s Specialty Health Care segment typicallyegiences a significant decline in revenues dubdsubstantial closure of one of its
largest customers, the New York City DepartmeriEdfication, during summer recess.

Employees

As of January 1, 2011, the Company employed anridtrative, sales, recruiting and management sfadpproximately 190 people, includi
certified IT specialists and licensed engineers vitomm time to time, participate in IT and engiriagrdesign projects undertaken by the
Company. As of January 1, 2011, there were appratgly 530 information technology and 450 engimegend technical employees and
consultants assigned by the Company to work onfcfieojects for various periods. As of Januargd11, there were approximately

420 specialty health care services employees asignclients. None of the Company's employeespisesented by a collective bargaining
agreement. The Company considers its relationshipits employees to be good.

Access to Company Information

RCM electronically files its annual report on Fot®K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current répon Form 8-K and all amendments to
those reports with the Securities and Exchange Gesiom (“SEC”). The public may read and copy ahthe reports that are filed with the
SEC at the SEC'’s Public Reference Room at 100deBthE, Washington, DC 20549. The public may iobtg#ormation on the operation of
the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC af@-8EC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet sitp:(fwww.sec.gov) that contains
reports, proxies, information statements, and atifermation regarding issuers that file electratiy.

RCM makes available on its website or by responéfieg of charge to requests addressed to the Corigp@onrporate Secretary, its annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form@,Gzurrent reports on Form 8-K and all amendmenthdse reports filed by the Company
with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(theoSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendéubse reports are available as soon as
reasonably practicable after such material is meatally filed with or furnished to the Securitieed Exchange Commission. The Company’s
website is http://www.rcmt.com. The informatiomtained on the Company’s website, or on other weddinked to the Company’s website,
is not part of this document. Reference heretinéoCompany’s website is an inactive text referesdg.

RCM has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable tofdi$ directors, officers and employees. In additthe Company has adopted a Code of
Ethics, within the meaning of applicable SEC rubgsplicable to its Chief Executive Officer, Chigh&ncial Officer and Controller. Both the
Code of Conduct and Code of Ethics are availabde 6f charge, by sending a written request tcCivapany’s Corporate Secretary. If the
Company makes any amendments to either of thesesQother than technical, administrative, or otte-substantive amendments), or waive
(explicitly or implicitly) any provision of the Caof Ethics to the benefit of its Chief ExecutivéfiGer, Chief Financial Officer or Controller,
intends to disclose the nature of the amendmewadrer, its effective date and to whom it appliestie investor relations portion of the
website, or in a report on Form 8-K filed with tBEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The Company’s business involves a number of ristigie of which are beyond its control. The risk andertainties described below are not
the only ones the Company faces. Management leslithat the most significant of these risks ancttamties are as follows:

Economic Trends

The global economic crisis has caused, among titigys, a general tightening in the credit markietser levels of liquidity, increases in the
rates of default and bankruptcy, and extreme \ilain credit, equity and fixed income marketsnyAor all of these developments could
negatively affect the Company's business, operatiaglts or financial condition in a number of wayr example, current or potential
customers may be unable to fund capital spendiagrpms, new product launches of other similar emglsavhereby they might procure
services from the Company, and therefore delayedse or cancel purchases of services or not pdglay paying for previously purchased
services. In addition, financial institution faiis may cause the Company to incur increased eapemsnake it more difficult either to utilize
existing debt capacity or otherwise obtain finagdior operations, investing activities (includifgetfinancing of any future acquisitions), or
financing activities.

Government Regulations

Staffing firms and employment service providersgeaerally subject to one or more of the followipges of government regulation:

(1) regulation of the employer/employee relatiopdhetween a firm and its employees, including tékholding or reporting, social security
retirement, benefits, workplace compliance, wagefeour, anti-discrimination, immigration and workecompensation; (2) registration,
licensing, record keeping and reporting requiresiesntd (3) federal contractor compliance. Faitoreomply with these regulations could
result in the Company incurring penalties and oftadvilities, monetary and otherwise.

Highly Competitive Business

The staffing services and outsourcing markets mylelj\ncompetitive and have limited barriers to gntRCM competes in global, national,
regional, and local markets with numerous temposéaffing and permanent placement companies. Baogetition in the staffing industry is
significant and pricing pressures from competitomd customers are increasing. In addition, theenedreasing pressure on companies to
outsource certain areas of their business to @t @fishore outsourcing firms. RCM expects thatlével of competition will remain high in
the future, which could limit RCM'’s ability to magin or increase its market share or profitability.

As described in Item 1, “Business,” our operatiagults are subject to seasonal fluctuations, weittuced demand often occurring during first
guarter of the year when clients are finalizingrthie and engineering budgets, and also duringgasrin which there are a substantial amount
of holidays and season vacations. In particulag, @f the largest customers in our Specialty Heatte group, the New York City Department
of Education, significantly reduces activity duritige summer months, when schools are closed. @amating results for any given period may
fluctuate as a result of the timing of holidaysgations and other events, and if we were to expegi@einfavorable performance during periods
in which we would otherwise expect to have highsseal demand, we may have limited ability to magdar such performance during peric

of seasonally lower demand.

Events Affecting Significant Customers

As disclosed in Item 1, “Business,” the five, terddwenty largest customers accounted for appraein86.9%, 44.1% and 54.6%,
respectively, of revenues for the fiscal year englatlary 1, 2011. Some of these customers maffdmeal by the current state of the
economy or developments in the credit marketse Tompany's customers may engage in mergermdaistransactions. In addition,
customers may choose to reduce the business theittd®CM for other reasons or no reason. Shouldsignificant customers experience a
downturn in their business that weakens their figrcondition or merge with another company orotfise cease independent operation, or
limit their relationship with us, it is possibleattthe business that the customer does with thep@oyn would be reduced or eliminated, which
could adversely affect financial results.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (CONTINUED)

Dependence Upon Personnel

The Company’s operations depend on the contindedt&bf its officers and other executive managemdihe loss of key officers and
members of executive management may cause a sigmifilisruption to the Company’s business. RCM di&gmends on the performance and
productivity of its local managers and field penselh The Company’ ability to attract and retain new business igifiicantly affected by loce
relationships and the quality of service render€le loss of key managers and field personnel nisayjaopardize existing client relationships
with businesses that continue to use the Compaeysces based upon past relationships with loealagers and field personnel. In order to
fulfill the requirements of the Company’s customeéhnge Company must be able to recruit and retaimagiate personnel for client
assignments.

Revolving Credit Facility and Liquidity

If the Company was unable to borrow under its Rangl Credit Facility, it may adversely affect liglity, results of operations and financial
condition. The Company's liquidity depends oraltflity to generate sufficient cash flows from otéons and, from time to time, borrowings
under the Revolving Credit Facility with the Companagent lender Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania. Company believes that Citizens Bank
is liquid and is not aware of any current risk ttiety will become illiquid. At January 1, 2011et@ompany had outstanding borrowings under
the Revolving Credit Facility of $0.0 million, atetters of credit outstanding for $0.9 million.

The Revolving Credit Facility contains various ficéal and norfinancial covenants. At January 1, 2011, the Cargp@as in compliance wi
the covenants and other provisions of the Creditlifa Any failure to be in compliance could hagematerial adverse effect on liquidity,
results of operations and financial condition.

Goodwill and Intangible Impairments May Have an Adwerse Effect on Financial Statements

As of January 1, 2011, the Company had $7.3 millibgoodwill and $0.3 million intangible assetsitmbalance sheet, which represents 9.2%
of total assets. Goodwill represents the premiaid pver the fair value of the net tangible andingfible assets acquired in business
combinations. The Company is required to perforgo@dwill and intangible asset impairment test bleast an annual basis. Application of
the goodwill and intangible asset impairment teguires significant judgments including estimatidriuture cash flows, which is dependen
internal forecasts, estimation of the long-terne iaftgrowth for the businesses, the useful liferavieich cash flows will occur and
determination of weighted average cost of capi@anges in these estimates and assumptions ceatddially affect the determination of fair
value and/or conclusions on goodwill and intangéseet impairment for each reporting unit. The @any conducts its annual goodwill and
intangible asset impairment test as of the lastaldije Company’s fiscal November each year, orenf@@quently if indicators of impairment
exist. We periodically analyze whether any suahcators of impairment exist. A significant amowfjudgment is involved in determining if
an indicator of impairment has occurred. Such iaftics may include a sustained, significant dedlirghare price and market capitalization, a
decline in expected future cash flows, a signifiGaverse change in legal factors or in the busicésiate, unanticipated competition and/or
slower expected growth rates, among others. Thepaay compares the fair value of each of its répguinits to their respective carrying
values, including related goodwill and intangibésets. There were no triggering events durindisical year ended January 1, 2011 that
indicated a need to perform the impairment testrgi subsequent to the Company's annual test ddtere can be no assurance that future
tests of goodwill and intangible asset impairmeifitmot result in impairment charges. If the Compas required to write down goodwill or
intangible assets, the related charge could méjeréuce reported net income or result in a assffor the period in which the write down
occurs.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (CONTINUED)

Workers’ Compensation and Employee Medical Insurane

The Company self-insures a portion of the expofurnsses related to workers’ compensation andeyeps’ medical insurance. The
Company has established reserves for workers’ coggtion and employee medical insurance claims basédstorical loss statistics and
periodic independent actuarial valuations. Sigaifit differences in actual experience or significdranges in assumptions may materially
affect the Company’s future financial results.

Improper Activities of Temporary Professionals Coutl Result in Damage to Business Reputation, Discontiation of Client
Relationships and Exposure to Liability

The Company may be subject to claims by clientsteel to errors and omissions, misuse of proprigtdoymation, discrimination and
harassment, theft and other criminal activity, madgice, and other claims stemming from the impramtivities or alleged activities of
temporary professionals. There can be no assuthateurrent liability insurance coverage will dequate or will continue to be available in
sufficient amounts to cover damages or other @stsciated with such claims.

Claims raised by clients stemming from the improgeeiions of temporary professionals, even if withmerit, could cause the Company to
incur significant expense associated with rewortsor other damages related to such claims. &umibre, such claims by clients could
damage the Company's business reputation and neshé discontinuation of client relationships.

Acquisitions May Not Succeed

The Company reviews prospective acquisitions asl@ment of its growth strategy. The failure of awguisition to meet the Company’s
expectations, whether due to a failure to succégsfiuegrate any future acquisition or otherwisgy result in damage to the Company’s
financial performance and/or divert managementenéibn from its core operations or could negatiaffect the Companyg’ability to meet th
needs of its customers promptly.

International Operations

The Company operates its business in Canada aadegs significant extent, in Puerto Rico andaimel For the fiscal year ended January 1,
2011, nearly 20% of the Company’s revenues wererng¢ed outside the United States. There are nettkis inherent in conducting business
internationally including: the imposition of tradlarriers, foreign exchange restrictions, longsmpent cycles, greater difficulties in accounts
receivables collection, difficulties in complyingtlva variety of foreign laws, changes in legategulatory requirements, difficulties in staff
and managing foreign operations, political insigp#&nd potentially adverse tax consequences.h&@ktent we experience these risks, our
business and results of operations could be adyeaffected.

Foreign Currency Fluctuations and Changes in Exchage Rates
The Company is exposed to risks associated withigarcurrency fluctuations and changes in exchaatgs. RCM’s exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations relates to operations in @anarincipally conducted through its Canadian &liagy. Exchange rate fluctuations affect

the U.S. dollar value of reported earnings derifveth the Canadian operations as well as the cayryatue of the Company's investment in the
net assets related to these operations. The Conumas not engage in hedging activities with resfreforeign operations.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (CONTINUED)

Trademarks

Management believes the RCM Technologies, Inc. naregtremely valuable and important to its busindhe Company endeavors to protect
its intellectual property rights and maintain certsademarks, trade names, service marks and ottadlectual property rights, including The
Source of Smart Solutions®. The Company is nateguly aware of any infringing uses or other coiodis that would be reasonably likely to
materially and adversely affect the Company's di$es proprietary rights.

Data Center Capacity and Telecommunication Links

Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS), card key accrs suppression, and environmental control systerotect RCM’s datacenter. All
systems are monitored on a 24/7 basis with aledagbilities via voice or email. The telecommatiimns architecture at RCM utilizes
managed private circuits from AT&T, which encompssprovisioning redundancy and diversity.

RCM’s ability to protect its data center againstndge from fire, power loss, telecommunicationaufailand other disasters is critical to
business operations. In order to provide manysasérvices, RCM must be able to store, retriek@;gss and manage large databases and
periodically expand and upgrade its capabilitidasy damage to the Company’s data centers or ahyréadf the Company’s
telecommunication links that interrupts its opemasi or results in an inadvertent loss of data cadicersely affect RCM’s ability to meet its
customers’ needs and their confidence in utilizR@M for future services.

RCM’s ability to protect its data, provide serviegesl safeguard its installations, as it relatebed T infrastructure, is in part dependent on
several outside vendors with whom the Company raaiatservice level agreements.

Litigation
The Company is currently, and may in the futureobee, involved in legal proceedings and claims agigiom time to time in the course of its
business, including the litigation described in &ld¥ (Contingencies) to the consolidated finarsti@ements. An adverse outcome to the

referenced litigation or other cases arising inftliare could have an adverse impact on the catestedd financial position and consolidated
results of operations of the Company.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company provides specialty professional comguitervices, principally performed at various mlitocations, through 26 administrative
and sales offices located in the United Statesrt®@ico, Canada and Ireland. The majority of @mampanys offices typically consist of 1,0(

to 10,000 square feet and are leased by the Confpatgrms of one to three years. Offices in largesmaller markets may vary in size from
the typical office. The Company does not expeat thwill be difficult to maintain or find suitabllease space at reasonable rates in its market
or in areas where the Company contemplates expansio

The Company's executive office is located at 25@CMIllan Avenue, Suite 350, Pennsauken, New J&8&§9-4613. These premises consist
of approximately 11,500 square feet and are leasadate of approximately $14.00 per square feogpnum for a term ending on August 31,
2012.

The Company's operational office is located at 2@tétwiew Boulevard, # Floor, Parsippany, NJ 07054-1271. These premisesist of
approximately 28,000 square feet and are leasadae of approximately $29.00 per square fooiap@um for a term ending on June 30, 2

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Included in the Company’s accounts payable anduadcexpenses is a provision for losses from legdters aggregating approximately $0.6
million and $0.7 million as of January 1, 2011 daduary 2, 2010, respectively. Asserted clainthése matters seek approximately $6.8
million in damages as of January 1, 2011.

The Company is also subject to other pending lpgateedings and claims that arise from time to timthe ordinary course of its busine
which may not be covered by insurance.

See further discussion of Legal Proceedings in N@téContingencies) to the consolidated finandiaesnents included in Item 8 of this
Report.

ITEM 4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED]
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Shares of the Company's common stock are tradddheM™NASDAQ Global Market under the Symbol “RCMTThe following table sets forth
approximate high and low sales prices for the tearyg in the period ended January 1, 2011 as repoyt&he NASDAQ Global Market:

Common Stock

Fiscal Year Ended January 2, 201! High Low
First Quarte! $1.8¢ $0.9(
Second Quarte $2.4¢ $1.0:
Third Quartel $2.4¢ $1.47
Fourth Quarte $3.1( $2.1(

Fiscal Year Ended January 1, 201
First Quartel $3.6( $2.3¢
Second Quarte $5.2¢ $3.1:
Third Quartel $5.2¢ $4.2¢
Fourth Quarte $5.3( $4.3¢

Holders

As of February 4, 2011, the approximate numberotddrs of record of the Company's Common Stock4v&s Based upon the requests for
proxy information in connection with the Compan3®l1Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Companyelek the number of beneficial
owners of its Common Stock is approximately 2,166.

Dividends

The Company has never declared or paid a cashetididn the Common Stock and does not anticipate@ayy cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. It is the current policy af tbompany's Board of Directors to retain all eaggito finance the development and expansion
of the Company's business. Any future paymenfivflends will be at the discretion of the Boarddifectors and will depend upon, among
other things, the Company's earnings, financiablit@n, capital requirements, level of indebtednesstractual restrictions, and other factors
that the Board of Directors deems relevant. TheolRéng Credit Facility (as defined in Item 7 hefeprohibits the payment of dividends or
distributions on account of the Company’s capitatk without the prior consent of the majority bétCompany’s lenders.

Stock Repurchase by Issuer

The following table provides information relatirgthe Company’s repurchases of common stock ddin@dourth quarter of the fiscal year
ended January 1, 2011 under the share repurchagepr authorized by our Board of Directors in Felyu2010.

Total Number Approximate Dollar
of Shares Purchased Value of Shares
Total Number Average as Part of Publicly that May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid Announced Purchased Under
Period Purchasel Per Shar Program the Progran
October - November 2 - - - -
November == December : - - - -
December — January 1 20,43: $4.5( 20,43: $7,294,05
Total 20,43: $4.5( 20,43: $7,294,05
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not required

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

RCM participates in a market that is cyclical inura and sensitive to economic changes. As atrekalimpact of economic changes on
revenues and operations can be substantial, mgurftisignificant volatility in the Company’s fineial performance.

After normalizing for the July 6, 2009 acquisitiohthe operating assets of Project Solutions Grénp,(“PSG”), the Company experienced a
decrease in revenues during the fiscal year eratleahiy 1, 2011 as compared to the comparable yr@rperiod. The revenue decrease was
primarily attributable to subpar performance in @@mpany’s Information Technology segment offseghins in its Engineering

segment. While the Company believes general ecanconditions and overall market conditions forliigormation Technology and Specialty
Health Care segments improved through fiscal 26Company is cautious regarding expectationfigoal 2011 as the Company believes
that any general economic or market recovery maglde and/or tenuous.

The Company believes it has developed and asserablattractive portfolio of capabilities, estabégha proven record of performance and
credibility and built an efficient pricing struceir The Company is committed to optimizing its bess model as a single-source premier
provider of business and technology solutions witrong vertical focus offering an integratedeswoit services through a global delivery
platform.

The Company believes that most companies recogmézinportance of advanced technologies and buspresesses to compete in today’s
business climate. However, the process of degigniaveloping and implementing business and teclgyadolutions is becoming increasingly
complex. The Company believes that many busingsslay are focused on return on investment anaiyisioritizing their initiatives, and
that this has had an adverse impact on spendirgiiognt and prospective clients of the Companyrfany emerging new solutions.

Nonetheless, the Company continues to believebtisinesses must implement more advanced informeg@mology and engineeril
solutions to upgrade their systems, applicatioms@ncesses so that they can maximize their prodiycand optimize their performance in
order to maintain a competitive advantage. AltHougrking under budgetary, personnel and expettisistraints, companies are driven to
support increasingly complex systems, applicatamd processes of significant strategic value. Thisgiven rise to a demand for
outsourcing. The Company believes that its curagit prospective clients are continuing to evaltfepotential for outsourcing business
critical systems, applications and processes.

The Company provides project management and camgsiéervices, which are billed based on eitheredon fixed fees or hourly rates, ¢
combination of both. The billing rates and prafiargins for project management and solutions sesvace generally higher than those for
professional consulting services. The Company igdigeendeavors to expand its sales of higher masglutions and project management
services. The Company also realizes revenues ¢ti@mt engagements that range from the placemetmfact and temporary technical
consultants to project assignments that entaitlthieery of end-to-end solutions. These servigespaimarily provided to the client at hourly
rates that are established for each of the Companyisultants based upon their skill level, expegeand the type of work performed.

The majority of the Company's services are provigieder purchase orders. Contracts are utilizeckotain of the more complex assignments
where the engagements are for longer terms or wiremse documentation on the nature and scogeedgsignment is necessary. Although
contracts normally relate to longer-term and mamaplex engagements, they do not obligate the ciesttarpurchase a minimum level of
services and are generally terminable by the custam 60 to 90 days’ notice. The Company, fronetimtime, enters into contracts requiring
the completion of specific deliverables. Typicalese contracts are for less than one year. Dhgp@ny recognizes revenue on these
deliverables at the time the client accepts andayas the deliverables.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Overview (Continued)

Costs of services consist primarily of salaries emshpensation-related expenses for billable coastdf including payroll taxes, employee
benefits and insurance. Selling, general and adirative expenses consist primarily of salaries benefits of personnel responsible for
business development, recruiting, operating a@ivjtand training, and include corporate overhe@erses. Corporate overhead expenses
relate to salaries and benefits of personnel resplenfor corporate activities, including the Compa corporate marketing, administrative and
financial reporting responsibilities and acquisitprogram. The Company records these expenses intigmned.

On June 3, 2010, the Company announced that itsdBddirectors met with respect to an unsolicipedposal by CDI Corp. to acquire all of
the outstanding shares of the Company’s commork $tw$5.20 per share, and determined that it wowldbe in the best interest of the
Company to pursue the transaction as structureciyCorp.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company'’s consolidated financial statementewweepared in accordance with U.S. generally aedeptcounting principles (“GAAP”),
which require management to make subjective de@siassessments and estimates about the effectttdrsnthat are inherently uncertain. As
the number of variables and assumptions affectisgudgment increases, such judgments become esensubjective. While management
believes its assumptions are reasonable and apgpactual results may be materially differennirestimated. Management has identified
certain critical accounting policies, describedoaelthat require significant judgment to be exexdiby management.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues from several sgurthe Compang’Engineering Services and Information Technologgises segmer
perform consulting and project solutions servicaH.of the Companys segments perform staff augmentation serviceslaride revenue fro
permanent placement fees. The majority of the Gomis revenues are invoiced on a time and matdréals.

Project Service- The Company recognizes revenues in accordanbe‘Révenue Recognition” which clarifies applicatiohU.S. generally
accepted accounting principles to revenue trarmagti Project services are generally provided oos&plus, fixed-fee or time-and-material
basis. Typically, a customer will outsource a th$e project or activity and the Company assumgsarsibility for the performance of such
project or activity. The Company recognizes revsnand associated costs on a gross basis as serécprovided to the customer and costs
are incurred using its employees. The Company fime to time, enters into contracts requiring ¢benpletion of specific deliverables. The
Company may recognize revenues on these deliverabliie time the client accepts and approvesdligedables. In instances where project
services are provided on a fixed-price basis aadtntract will extend beyond a 12-month periodergie is recorded in accordance with the
terms of each contract. In some instances, revisnpied and recorded at the time certain milae®are reached, as defined in the
contract. In other instances, revenue is billedi torded based upon contractual rates per heurgercentage of completion). In addition,
some contracts contain “Performance Fees” (bondsespmpleting a contract under budget. Perfortedfees, if any, are recorded when the
Company is reasonably certain of collection. Sawmracts also limit revenues and billings to maximamounts. Provision for contract
losses, if any, are made in the period such lomsedetermined. For contracts where there isiaetable, if the work is not complete on a
specific deliverable and the revenue is not recxaghithe costs are deferred. The associated @e@sexpensed when the related revenue is
recognized.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Consulting and Staffing ServiceRevenues derived from consulting and staffingises are recorded on a gross basis as services are
performed and associated costs have been incusieg employees of the Company. In these circurssgrthe Company assumes the risk of
acceptability of its employees to its customerscdrtain cases, the Company may utilize other eoigis and their employees to fulfill
customer requirements. In these cases, the Compaaives an administrative fee for arranging lidling for, and collecting the billings
related to these companies. The customer is tfpiesponsible for assessing the work of thesemamies who have responsibility for
acceptability of their personnel to the customédnder these circumstances, the Company’s repoetezhues are net of associated costs
(effectively recognizing the net administrative fady).

Permanent Placement Servii- The Company earns permanent placement fees fromiding permanent placement services. Fees for
placements are recognized at the time the candidatenences employment. The Company guarantepsritsanent placements on a prorated
basis for 90 days. In the event a candidate isetained for the 90-day period, the Company witiide a suitable replacement candidate. In
the event a replacement candidate cannot be lgagate€ompany will provide a prorated refund to¢hient. An allowance for refunds, based
upon the Company’s historical experience, is reedid the financial statements. Revenues arededown a gross basis.

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts receivable are primarilyfdom trade customers. Credit is extended baseslaluation of customers’ financial
condition and, generally, collateral is not reqgdirédccounts receivable payment terms vary andi@ted in the financial statements at amc
due from customers net of an allowance for doulathdounts. Accounts outstanding longer than tlyenpat terms are considered past

due. The Company determines its allowance by denisig a number of factors, including the lengthimie trade accounts receivable are past
due, the Company’s previous loss history, the eustts current ability to pay its obligation to tB®mpany and the condition of the general
economy and the industry as a whole. The Compaitgsioff accounts receivable when they become ligatible.

The Company'’s allowance for doubtful accounts iasesl by approximately $0.1 million to $1.3 millias of January 1, 2011 from $1.2
million as of January 2, 2010.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the premium paid over thevalue of the net tangible and intangible assetsiaed|in business combinations. The
Company conducts its annual goodwill and intang#dset impairment test as of the Saturday closdsbvember 30 each year, or more
frequently if indicators of impairment exist. Werdically analyze whether any such indicatorgggairment exist. A significant amount of
judgment is involved in determining if an indicatdrimpairment has occurred. Such indicators majuste a sustained, significant decline
share price and market capitalization, a declineximected future cash flows, a significant advetsmnge in legal factors or in the business
climate, unanticipated competition and/or slowegrested growth rates, among others. Further, ietiean indicator of an impairment, the
Company compares the fair value of each of itsnt@mpunits to their respective carrying valueglinling related goodwill and intangible
assets. Application of the goodwill and intangiatset impairment test requires significant judgmercluding estimation of future cash flo
which is dependent on internal forecasts, estimaifdhe long-term rate of growth for the businasske useful life over which cash flows will
occur and determination of weighted average costpital. Changes in these estimates and assumsptauld materially affect the
determination of fair value and/or conclusions ondwill and intangible asset impairment for eagboréing unit. Due to the thin trading of 1
Company stock in the public marketplace and theachpf the control premium held by a relatively felareholders, the Company does not
consider the market capitalization of the Compdrgyrhost appropriate measure of fair value of gothdevi our reporting units. We look to
earnings/revenue multiples of similar companiegm#lg completing acquisitions and the ability of eeporting units to generate cash flows as
better measures of the fair value of our reportinigs, and under such calculations the fair vake=eded the recorded goodwill by at least :
for each of the reporting units. There can bessugance that future tests of goodwill and intalegiisset impairment will not result in
impairment charges.

Long-Lived and Intangible Assets

The Company evaluates long-lived assets and irtengssets with definite lives for impairment whesreevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset nudyoa recoverable. When it is probable that uradiated future cash flows will not be
sufficient to recover an asset’s carrying amourg,asset is written down to its fair value. Assetse disposed of by sale, if any, are reported
at the lower of the carrying amount or fair valasd cost to sell.

Accounting for Stock Options

The Company uses stock options to attract, retadivreward employees for long-term service. The gamy follows “Share Based Payment,”
which requires that the compensation cost relgtrgiock-based payment transactions be recognizidancial statements. This
compensation cost is measured based on the faie wdlthe equity or liability instruments issued.

The Company measures stock-based compensationsingtthe Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Insurance Liabilities

The Company has risk participation arrangements keispect to workers compensation and health natgance. The amounts included in the

Company’s costs related to this risk participatoe estimated and can vary based on changes impssns, the Compang’'claims experienc
or the providers included in the associated instearograms.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Accounting for Income Taxes

In establishing the provision for income taxes daterred income tax assets and liabilities, andatan allowances against deferred tax as
the Company makes judgments and interpretatioredbas enacted tax laws, published tax guidancesatichates of future earnings. As of
January 1, 2011, the Company had net short terarieef tax assets of $0.8 million and total longnteet deferred income tax assets of $3.3
million. The short term deferred tax assets pritpaepresent timing differences for GAAP expenseraals not deductible for tax

purposes. The long term deferred tax assets memrdse tax effect of temporary differences for @®AP versus tax amortization of
acquisitions made in the current and prior periodRealization of deferred tax assets is dependggur the likelihood that future taxable incc
will be sufficient to realize these benefits oviend, and the effectiveness of tax planning strategi the relevant tax jurisdictions. In the event
that actual results differ from these estimatesassdssments, valuation allowances may be required.

The Company conducts its operations in multiplejtaisdictions in the United States, Canada, Irdland Puerto Rico. The Company and its
subsidiaries file a consolidated U.S. Federal inedax return and file in various states. The Comgjsaiederal income tax returns have been
examined through 2007. With limited exceptiong, @ompany is no longer subject to audits by statklacal tax authorities for tax years pi
to 2007. As of January 1, 2011, the Company dichage any material uncertain tax positions.

The Company’s future effective tax rates could theeasely affected by changes in the valuationfléferred tax assets or liabilities or
changes in tax laws or interpretations thereo&ddition, the Company is subject to the examinatiits income tax returns by the Internal
Revenue Service and other tax authorities. The @ompegularly assesses the likelihood of adverseooues resulting from these
examinations to determine the adequacy of its giomifor income taxes.

Accrued Bonuses

The Company pays bonuses to certain executive neamat, field management and corporate employeesilas or after giving
consideration to, a variety of financial performamseasures. Executive management, field managendrdertain corporate employees’
bonuses are accrued throughout the year for paydugintg the first quarter of the following yearsea in part upon anticipated annual results
compared to annual budgets. In addition, the Compays discretionary bonuses to certain employekigh are not related to budget
performance. Variances in actual results versugéed amounts can have a significant impact ordl®ilations and therefore on the
estimates of the required accruals. Accordingig,dctual earned bonuses may be materially différem the estimates used to determine the
quarterly accruals.

Forward-looking Information

The Company’s growth prospects are influenced bydhreconomic trends. The pace of customer cagmtaiding programs, new product
launches and similar activities have a direct impacthe need for information technology and engiimg services. When the U.S. and
Canadian economies decline, the Company’s operpénfigrmance could be adversely impacted. The @Goypelieves that its fiscal
discipline, strategic focus on targeted verticathkets and diversification of service offerings pidas some insulation from adverse
trends. However, declines in the economy couldltés the need for future cost reductions or clemig strategy.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Forward-looking Information (Continued)

Additionally, changes in government regulationslidoesult in prohibition or restriction of certaiypes of employment services or the
imposition of new or additional employee benefitnsing or tax requirements with respect to tfwrision of employment services that may
reduce RCM'’s future earnings. There can be norassa that RCM will be able to increase the fees@dd to its clients in a timely manner
and in a sufficient amount to cover increased casta result of any of the foregoing.

The consulting and employment services marketghlfticompetitive with limited barriers to entry.CRI competes in global, national, regio
and local markets with numerous competitors immhthe Company's service lines. Price competiitiotihe industries the Company serves is
significant, and pricing pressures from competitord customers are increasing. RCM expects tedettel of competition will remain high in
the future, which could limit RCM’s ability to maain or increase its market share or profitability.

Results of Operations (In thousands, except for eaimgs per share data)

Fiscal Years Ende

January 1, 201 January 2, 201
Amount % of Revenue Amount % of Revenu
Revenue! $162,02. 100.( $171,73 100.(
Cost of service 115,83¢ 71.5 127,17: 74.C
Gross profil 46,18 28.t 44 ,55¢ 26.C
Selling, general and administrati 35,82t 22.1 40,50¢ 23.€
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,341 0.8 1,50z 0.9
37,16¢ 22.¢ 42,01: 24.F
Operating income from continuing operatic 9,021 5.6 2,54¢ 15
Other (expense) income, r (34) 0.C 9,78( 5.7
Income from continuing operations before
income taxe 8,987 5.6 12,32¢ 7.2
Income tax expense from continuing operati 2,57( 1.6 4,60¢ 2.7
Income from continuing operatiol 6,417 4.0 7,717 4.5
Loss from discontinued operatiol
net of tax benef (622) (0.9 (795) (0.5)
Net income $5,79¢ 3.6 $6,92: 4.C

The above summary is not a presentation of resetitperations under generally accepted accountimgiples in the United States of America
and should not be considered in isolation or asl@nnative to results of operations as an indicatif the Company’s performance.

The Company follows a 52/53 week fiscal reportiatendar ending on the Saturday closest to DeceBibef he fiscal year ended January 1,
2011 had fifty-two weeks and the fiscal year endi@tuary 2, 2010 had fifty-three weeks.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Fiscal Year Ended January 1, 2011 Compared to Fist¥ear Ended January 2, 2010

Revenues. Revenues decreased 5.6%, or $9.7 million, fofiftal year ended January 1, 2011 as compardeetprior year (the “comparable
prior year period”). Revenues decreased $12.4amilh the Information Technology segment, increla$2.3 million in the Engineering
segment, and increased $0.3 million in the Speciddtalth Care segment. The Company typically eéepees seasonality in revenues during
months that contain holidays and increased vacétiom as billable personnel are not available tiatibie to customers. See Segment
Discussion for further information on revenue chesig

Cost of Services. Cost of services decreased 8.9%, or $11.4 mjlfmnthe fiscal year ended January 1, 2011 as eoetpto the comparable
prior year period. Cost of services as a percentdigevenues decreased to 71.5% for the fiscalgmded January 1, 2011 from 74.0% for the
comparable prior year period. The decrease inafastrvices both in dollars and as a percentageveiues is primarily due to favorable fi
priced contracts in our Engineering segment, desectanbilled labor costs as compared to total labsts for consultants (i.e., an increase in
utilization of billable personnel) in our Informati Technology segment and a general focus on geltia delivering higher gross margin
services.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative (“SGA”) expes decreased 11.6%, or $4.7 million, for the fisca
year ended January 1, 2011 as compared to the cabi@arior year period. As a percentage of reesnGGA expenses were 22.1% for

fiscal year ended January 1, 2011 as compared.88@fr the comparable prior year period. Therelase in SGA expenses both in dollars
and as a percentage of revenues is primarily daectincerted effort by the Company to reduce SG#erges. The primary components of the
reduction include labor and related expenses, batlahd professional fees.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization was $1.3 milliontfee fiscal year ended January 1, 2011 and $llBmi
for the comparable prior year period.

Other Income, Net. Other income, net consists of interest expensesed credit line fees and amortized loan costh@Company’s loan
agreement, net of interest income, gains and lasségreign currency transactions. Additionallythe comparable prior year period, $9.8
million in proceeds was received from a legal setnt.

Income Tax Expense From Continuing Operations. The Company experienced income tax expense amiadrom continuing operations
of $2.6 million for the fiscal year ended Januarp@11 as compared to $4.6 million for the complerabior year period. Due to a permanent
tax difference associated with the dispositionhef ©Oracle business unit further described in N&tarid the related goodwill and intangible
asset tax deduction, the Company recognized amiadeax benefit of $1.6 million in the fiscal yearded January 1, 2011. A permanent tax
difference was recognized in the fiscal year entiediary 1, 2011 because the Company recognizedpairment of the same goodwill and
intangible assets associated with the Oracle bssiaeit for book purposes in fiscal 2008.

The effective tax rate for income from continuirgeoations was 28.6% for the fiscal year ended Jgrya@2011 as compared to 37.4% in the
comparable prior year period. The current perideatiive tax rate in the United States was 26.3%oaspared to 41.2 % in the comparable
prior year period. The primary reason for the dase in the effective rate in the United Statesduasto the discrete nature of the goodwill
intangible asset tax deduction offset by an in@éastate taxes. The current period effectivertde in Canada was 28.3% as compared to
27.6% in the comparable prior year period. The Gamy also experienced an approximate loss of $0l®min Ireland whereby the net effe
of a full valuation allowance yielded no tax betafid increased the Company’s consolidated effed¢tix rate.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Fiscal Year Ended January 1, 2011 Compared to Fist¥ear Ended January 2, 2010 (Continued)

Discontinued Operations. See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statesrieotuded in this report for a description of distnued
operations. The Company experienced a loss fregodiinued operations, net of tax benefit of $0ilian for the fiscal year ended January
2011 as compared to $0.8 million in the comparabier year period. The current period was offgetil$0.1 million gain on sale of
discontinued operations, net of tax expense. Tdmafgany experienced a loss from discontinued omeratbefore tax benefit of $1.2 million in
both the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011 anddhgparable prior year period.

Segment Discussion (See Footnote 14)
Information Technology

Information Technology revenues of $71.6 milliortlre fiscal year ended January 1, 2011 decreaszd #iillion, or 14.8%, as compared to
the comparable prior year period. The decreasevienue was primarily attributable to a continueghlening of the general economy, a $5.4
million decrease in the Company’s Michigan officesjenue decreases from the Company’s Life Sciecigmss including a $2.0 million
decrease in revenues from two major pharmacediiegits that were merged in 2009 and a concenteffed by the Company to shift to
higher gross margin revenues, partially offsetdyenues attributable to the PSG acquisition. Resgfor the PSG acquisition were $2.9
million for the fiscal year ended January 1, 20&4Tampared to $2.2 million in the comparable pyiear period. The Information Technology
segment operating income was $1.6 million for ikedl year ended January 1, 2011 as compareddpermating loss of $1.3 million in the
comparable prior year period. The improvementgarating income is primarily attributable to desm@ cost of sales as a percentage of
revenues and decreased SGA expenses. The detreaséof sales as a percentage of revenuesnmyfly due to the Company’s
concentrated effort to deliver higher margin segsgic

Engineering

Engineering revenues of $64.5 million in the fispahr ended January 1, 2011 increased $2.3 milio8,8%, as compared to the comparable
prior year period. The increase in revenue ishaitable to increases in revenues from several mtajgstomers in the Company’s Power
Systems Group that are operating at increasedsl@fapending as compared to the comparable peiar yeriod. The Engineering segment
operating income was $5.5 million for the fiscahyended January 1, 2011 as compared to $2.3 mibiothe comparable prior year

period. The increase in operating income was pilyndue to increased revenues and lower costvices as a percentage of revenues as
compared to the comparable prior year period. ddwease in cost of sales as a percentage of revénprimarily due to the Company’s
concentrated effort to deliver higher margin segsic

Specialty Health Care
Specialty Health Care revenues of $25.9 milliothia fiscal year ended January 1, 2011 increaseédrillion, or 1.4%, as compared to the
comparable prior year period. The Specialty He@Hine segment had operating income of $2.0 mifioorihe fiscal year ended January 1,

2011 as compared to $1.6 million for the comparabiler year period. The increase in operating meavas primarily due to decreases to ¢
expenses.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table summarizes the major captiaositthe Company’s Consolidated Statements of CashsHin thousands):

Fiscal Years Ende

January 1 January 2
2011 2010
Cash provided by (used ir
Operating Activities $13,34( $16,39:
Investing Activities $32¢ ($1,65()
Financing Activities $4E (%$4,81)

Operating Activities

Operating activities provided $13.3 million of cdsh the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011 as coedpa $16.4 million in the comparable
prior year period. The major components of thénqasvided by operating activities in the fiscahyended January 1, 2011 and the
comparable prior year period are as follows: nebine, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses hadatrrent assets, accounts payable and
accrued expenses and accrued payroll and relagtsl. co

Net income for the fiscal year ended January 112@4s $5.8 million as compared to $6.9 million tee comparable prior year period. 1
largest driver of the cash provided by operatiniydies in the comparable prior year period wamea-time $9.8 million legal settlement ($5.8
million after tax effect). Before considering tlegal settlement and other income during comparnaite year period, there was operating
income from continuing operations of $2.5 milligdL(6 million after tax effect). During the fisgsar ended January 1, 2011, there was
operating income from continuing operations of $8ibion ($6.4 million after tax effect). Net inowe in the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011
included a $1.6 million tax benefit recognized framanticipated tax deduction associated withithedation of a subsidiary (see Notes 15

16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements indudehis report).

A decrease in accounts receivables in the fiscal gaded January 1, 2011 provided $5.3 millioncaspared to providing $10.2 million in the
comparable prior year period. The Company beli¢hesiecrease in accounts receivables from Jary@§10 is due to lower revenues and
the Company’s focus on improving collection ratesascounts receivables. Prepaid expenses andaitirent assets provided $0.8 million
during the year ended January 1, 2011 as compau®@ & million in the comparable prior year peridthe primary reasons for the decrease in
prepaid expenses and other assets are a decreasennes and lower working capital needs assatiaith discontinued operations.

A decrease in accounts payable and accrued expiarnthesfiscal year ended January 1, 2011 used$illidn as compared to using $1.1
million in the comparable prior year period. Thengpany attributes these changes to general tinfipgyoments to vendors in the normal
course of business and liabilities associated dighontinued operations. An increase to accrugdofiaand related costs in the fiscal year
ended January 1, 2011 provided $0.3 million as @egto using $3.4 million in the comparable pyiear period. The increase in accrued
payroll and related costs during the fiscal yeateehJanuary 1, 2011 primarily relates to timingayroll offset by fewer employees on the
payroll as compared to the end of the comparalibe pear period.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Investing Activities

Investing activities provided cash of $0.3 millifmr the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011 as cozdp@ra use of $1.7 million for the
comparable prior year period. The decrease in gastl from investing activities for fiscal 2010casnpared to the comparable prior year
period was primarily attributable to significantlgcreased expenditures for property and equiprmehbha acquisition activity in the current
period. Additionally, the Company sold its Intergivision and received $0.4 million in cash (se®e\15). The Company anticipates
implementing an upgraded ERP system sometime ith 20 will see a significant rise in expendituresgdroperty and equipment as a result.

Financing Activities

In the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011, finanactyities consisted of providing $0.1 million fnothe sale of stock through the Company’s
employee stock purchase plan and $0.1 million ftleenexercise of stock options which was offset log@ of $0.2 million for the purchase of
treasury stock. In the fiscal year ended JanRaB010, financing activities primarily consistefdreducing debt by $4.9 million.

The Company and its subsidiaries are party to a émpeement with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania,rated and restated effective February
20, 2009, which provides for a $15 million revolgiaredit facility and includes a sub-limit of $5rillion for letters of credit (the “Revolving

Credit Facility”). Borrowings under the Revolvil@yedit Facility bear interest at one of two alteiverates, as selected by the Company at
each incremental borrowing. These alternatives(§relBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate), plygpdicable margin, or (ii) the agent ban
prime rate. The Company also pays unused linelfassd on the amount of the Revolving Credit Raditiat is not drawn. Unused line fees
are recorded as interest expense.

All borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facildye collateralized by all of the assets of the Camypand its subsidiaries and a pledge of the
stock of its subsidiaries. The Revolving Creditikty also contains various financial and non-figél covenants, such as restrictions on the
Company'’s ability to pay dividends. The Revolviicedit Facility expires in August 2011. We intendseek to extend or replace the
Revolving Credit Facility prior to such time if veetermine that doing so would be in alignment with financing needs.

There were no borrowings during the fiscal yeareghdanuary 1, 2011. During the fiscal year endmtuary 2, 2010, the Compasy’
outstanding borrowings ranged from $rilion to $4.9 million. The majority of borrowirsgin fiscal year ended January 2, 2010 were st
to LIBOR plus applicable margin on contracts of @&fys or more. At January 1, 2011 and January 20,2there were letters of cre
outstanding for $0.9 million and $1.6 million, resgively. At January 1, 2011, the Company hadlaldity for additional borrowings und
the Revolving Credit Facility of $14.1 million.

The Company anticipates that its primary uses pitabin future periods will be for working capitptrposes. Funding for any long-term and
short-term capital requirements as well as futeguasitions will be derived from one or more of fRevolving Credit Facility, funds generated
through operations or future financing transactiohke Company is subject to legal proceedingscaichs that arise from time to time in the
ordinary course of its business, which may or matylre covered by insurance. Were an unfavorab& iutcome to occur, there exists the
possibility of a material adverse impact on ouafinial position, liquidity, and the results of ogigons for the period in which the effect
becomes probable and reasonably estimable.

The Company's business strategy is to achieve grbuth internally through operations and externdilpugh strategic acquisitions. The
Company from time to time engages in discussiortis patential acquisition candidates. As the sizéhe Company and its financial resources
increase however, acquisition opportunities reqgisignificant commitments of capital may arise.otder to pursue such opportunities, the
Company may be required to incur debt or issuerpiaiéy dilutive securities in the future. No assnce can be given as to the Company’s
future acquisition and expansion opportunitiesaw lsuch opportunities will be financed.
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ITEM2.  MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Financing Activities (Continued)

The Company does not currently have material comenits for capital expenditures. However, the Carngpanticipates that it will begin
upgrade its current ERP system sometime in 20k Company does not currently anticipate enteriig any other significant capi
commitments during the next 12 months. The Comgaoyrrent commitments consist primarily of leaddigations for office space. T
Company believes that its capital resources afficirft to meet its present obligations and thaské incurred in the normal course of busi
for at least the next 12 months.

The Company leases office facilities and variousigment under non-cancelable leases expiring &wsdates through September
2015. Certain leases are subject to escalatiasetabased upon changes in various factors. Thienomn future annual operating lease
commitments for leases with non-cancelable terxdusive of unknown operating escalation chargesaa follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year: Amoun
2011 $3,53¢
2012 2,32(
2013 852
2014 15¢
2015 96
Total $6,96:

The Company has two active acquisition agreemehtzeby future contingent consideration may be ehamel paid (these relate to the M
19, 2008 acquisition of the operating assets ofdftuSolutions, Inc. (“NuSoft”) described in Notetd the Company Consolidated Financ
Statements included in its Annual Report on ForaKifor the fiscal year ended January 2, 2010, a$ agelhe PSG acquisition). In connec
with these acquisitions, the Company is obligategay future contingent consideration to the sgllggon the acquired business achie
certain earnings targets over periods ranging frem to four years following the acquisition. Inrgeal, the future contingent considera
amounts fall into two categories: (a) Deferred Gdastion -fixed amounts due if the acquisition achieves abagel of earnings which
been determined at the time of acquisition andEgnouts -amounts payable that are not fixed and are basdbeogrowth in excess of t
base level earnings.

The Company’s outstanding Deferred Consideratidigations potentially due after January 1, 2011iclhelate to the NuSoft and PSG
acquisitions, could result in the following maximeferred Consideration payments:

Year Endinc Amoun
December 31, 201 $94<
December 29, 201 164
December 28, 201 184
Maximum deferred consideratic $1,29:

The Company cannot estimate future Deferred Cordid@ payments with any certainty. However, tteenpany does not believe that the
Deferred Consideration earned and payable in soalfiyear ending December 31, 2011 will exceed $EBInouts, if any, cannot be estime
with any certainty and as such are not includedr@abdarnouts paid, if any, are not likely to betenial.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Financing Activities (Continued)
Significant employment agreements are as follows:

Employment Agreement

The Company has an employment agreement with iiesf Elxecutive Officer and President, Leon Kopyt,iethcurrently provides for an

annual base salary of $0.7 million and other cusigrbenefits. In addition, the agreement provithes Mr. Kopyt's annual bonus be based on
EBITDA, defined as earnings before interest, tadegpreciation and amortization. The agreemerdris frolling term of three years, which
automatically extends each year for an additionabgear period on February 28 of each year. Theeagent expires on February 28,

2014. The employment agreement is terminable &yCbimpany upon Mr. Kopyt's death or disability far “good and sufficient cause,” as
defined in the agreement.

Termination Benefits Agreement

The Company is party to a Termination Benefits Agnent with Mr. Kopyt, amended on December 12, 2003mply with the requirements
of section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of6l@Be “Benefits Agreement”). Pursuant to the Bisdgreement, following a Change in
Control (as defined therein), the remaining ternMof Kopyt's employment is extended for five yegite “Extended Term”). If Mr. Kopyt's
employment is terminated thereafter by the Compmhgr than for cause, or by Mr. Kopyt for good meaéincluding, among other things, a
material change in Mr. Kopyt's salary, title, rejoug responsibilities or a change in office locatighich requires Mr. Kopyt to relocate), then
the following provisions take effect: the Compasybligated to pay Mr. Kopyt a lump sum equal ®ddlary and bonus for the remainder of
the Extended Term; and the Company shall be olelittt pay to Mr. Kopyt the amount of any excisedagociated with the benefits provided
to Mr. Kopyt under the Benefits Agreement. If sactermination had taken place as of January 1,,2at.1Kopyt would have been entitled to
cash payments of approximately $5.9 million (repreisg salary and excise tax payments).

Severance Agreement

The Company is party to a Severance AgreementMitiKopyt, amended on December 12, 2007 to corjilly the requirements of section
409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the &ance Agreement”). The agreement provides fdaicepayments to be made to Mr.
Kopyt and for the continuation of Mr. Kopgtemployee benefits for a specified time afterskivice with the Company is terminated other
“for cause,” as defined in the Severance AgreemAntounts payable to Mr. Kopyt under the Severahgeeement would be offset and
reduced by any amounts received by Mr. Kopyt dfteitermination of employment under his employmegreement and the Benefits
Agreement, which are supplemented and not supatdgdthe Severance Agreement. If Mr. Kopyt hadhtteeminated as of January 1, 2011,
then under the terms of the Severance Agreemetitaféer offsetting any amounts that would have breerived under his current employment
and termination benefits agreements, he would baee entitled to cash payments of approximatel@ 84llion, inclusive of employee
benefits.

Impact of Inflation

Consulting, staffing, and project services are gahepriced based on mark-ups on prevailing raffigsay, and as a result are able to generally
maintain their relationship to direct labor cosBermanent placement services are priced as ddoraftsalary levels of the job candidates.

The Company'’s business is labor intensive; theegfitre Company has a high exposure to increasiaighicare benefit costs. The Company
attempts to compensate for these escalating aoftsshusiness cost models and customer pricingalsging along some of these increased
healthcare benefit costs to its customers and grapk) however, the Company has not been able sogpaall increases. The Company is
continuing to review its options to further conttioése costs, which the Company does not believespresentative of general inflationary
trends. Otherwise, inflation has not been a megdnirfactor in the Company’s operations.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

New Accounting Standards

In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-17, Tof05 —Revenue Recognition — Milestone MetlftdiSA 2010-17"), which provides
guidance on defining a milestone and determiningmibhmay be appropriate to apply the milestonehobf revenue recognition for research
or development transactions. The amendments in 2Bl0-17 are effective on a prospective basis ftgstones achieved in fiscal years
beginning on or after June 15, 2010, and interinops within those years. Early adoption is petedit however, if a Company elects to early
adopt, the amendment must be applied retrospegtir@h the beginning of the year of adoption. T@mmpany has adopted ASU 2010-17
effective as of the beginning of the fiscal yeatleshJanuary 1, 2011 but due to nonactivity of gplieable transactions, it did not impact its
consolidated results of operations.

Other accounting standards that have been issusposed by the FASB and SEC and/or other stasésatiing bodies that do not require
adoption until a future date are not expected teeleamaterial impact on the consolidated finanstalements upon adoption.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK ET RISK

The Company’s exposure to market risk for changeésterest rates relates primarily to the Companwgstment portfolio and debt
instruments, which primarily consist of its RevolgiCredit Facility. The Company does not have @deyative financial instruments in its
portfolio. The Company places its investmentsistiuments that meet high credit quality standafdse Company is adverse to principal loss
and ensures the safety and preservation of itstaddunds by limiting default risk, market riskdareinvestment risk. As of January 1, 2011,
the Company’s investments consisted of cash anceynmarket funds. The Company does not use inteassterivative instruments to
manage its exposure to interest rate changesermhgshe impact of a 10% (approximately 90 basigs) increase in interest rates on its
variable debt (using an incremental borrowing ratedild have a relatively nominal impact on the Camys results of operations. The
Company does not expect any material loss withe@dp its investment portfolio.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements, together with the repbthe Company’s Registered Public Accounting Fibegins on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management, under the supervisionvghdhe participation of the Company’s Chief Extiee Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Comfmdisclosure controls and procedures (as defindRlile 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covesethis report. Based upon that evaluation, theeClkecutive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that those disclosure controls procedures as of the end of the period coverdtiibyeport were functioning effectively to
provide reasonable assurance that information redquo be disclosed by the Company in the repbasit files or submits under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and repuiitath the time periods specified in the SEC'semiind forms and is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, incluidéngrincipal executive and principal financiafioérs, or persons performing similar
functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisioagarding required disclosure.

A controls system, no matter how well designed @perated, cannot provide absolute assurance thatijlectives of the controls system are
met, and no evaluation of controls can provide hlbs@ssurance that all control issues and insgaotfaud, if any, within a company have
been detected.

Managemerns Report on Internal Control over Financial Repayti

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting for the company. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process des@yto provide reasonable assurance regardingliaility of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. Our system of internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintee of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (iiyvjgle reasonable assurance that transactions ar
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in accordance with generally aeceaccounting principles, and that rece
and expenditures of the company are being madeio@gcordance with authorizations of managemedtdarectors of the company; and (iii)
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, esalisposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Management performed an assessment of the effaegeof our internal control over financial repagtas of January 1, 2011 based upon
criteria in Internal Control-Integrated Framewaskued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidtise Treadway Commission
(“COSO"). Based on this assessment, managemennuats that the company's internal control oveafficial reporting was effective as of
January 1, 2011, based on the criteria in Inte@uaitrol-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

There have been no changes in the Company’s intesn&ol over financial reporting that occurredidg the Company’s most recent fiscal
guarter and that have materially affected, or aasonably likely to materially affect, the Companiyiternal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by Item 10 shall be in@ddn the 2011 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 shall be in@ddn the 2011 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except as set forth below, the information requibgdtem 12 shall be included in the 2011 Proxyteteent.

The table below presents certain information comiogrsecurities issuable in connection with eqaiynpensation plans that have been
approved by the Company's shareholders and thatiatbeen approved by the Company's shareholders.

Number of securities
remaining available for
Number of securities to be issuance under equity
issued upon exercise of Weighted-average exercise compensation plans,
outstanding options, price of outstanding options, excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a)
@) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holde 1,101,594 $4.57 415,600
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde
Total 1,101,594 $4.57 415,600
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 shall be in@ddn the 2011 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 shall be in@ddn the 2011 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@ 1.and 2. Financial Statement Schedule-- See”Index to Financial Statements and Schec” on F-1.

3. See Item (b) below

(b)  Exhibits

(3)(@)

(3)(b)

(3)(c)

(3)(d)

(3)(e)

(4)(@)

(4)(b)

*(10)(a)

(10)(b)

*(10)(c)

*(10)(d)

Articles of Incorporation, as amended; incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 3(a) to the Registrantsmal Report ol
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1¢

Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporati incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to thegiRtrant's Prox
Statement, dated February 6, 1996, filed with tbeuBties and Exchange Commission on January 25..

Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorpoiati incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to tregRtrant's Prox
Statement, dated February 6, 1996, filed with tbeuBities and Exchange Commission on January 25..

Amended and Restated Bylaws; incorpatdiy reference to Exhibit 3(d) to the Registraftigual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2C

Certificate of Designation, Preferenaed Rights of Series A Junior Participating PrefeiStock, dated June 9, 2010
(filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s CurrenpBr on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Eange Commission
on June 9, 2010, and incorporated herein by rete)e

Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 11, 1896nd between RCM Technologies, Inc. and theéo
shareholders of The Consortium; incorporated bgregfce to Exhibit (¢)(2) to the Registrant's CurfRReport on Form
8-K dated March 19, 1996, filed with the Securitiasl &xchange Commission on March 20, 1¢

Rights Agreement, dated as of Junéd@p2between the Registrant and American Stocksfea& Trust Company, as
Rights Agent (filed as an exhibit to the Registm@turrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Seties and Exchange
Commission on June 9, 2010, and incorporated héseneference)

RCM Technologies, Inc. 1992 Incentive &t@ption Plan; incorporated by reference to Exhbtb the Registrant's
Proxy Statement, dated March 9, 1992, filed with $ecurities and Exchange Commission on March®..

RCM Technologies, Inc. 1994 N-employee Director Stock Option Plan; incorporatgddierence to the appendix
the Registrant's Proxy Statement, dated March 334 Ifiled with the Securities and Exchange Comimisen March
28, 1994,

RCM Technologies, Inc. 1996 Executive Stock Opftan, dated August 15, 1996; incorporated by refsz¢o Exhibi
10(l) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on FormKL@r the fiscal year ended October 31, 1996, fileth the
Securities and Exchange Commission on JanuaryQ®l, the“1996 1(-K”).

RCM Technologies, Inc. 2000 Employee Stimdentive Plan, dated January 6, 2000; incorpdrhyereference to

Exhibit A to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement, daarch 3, 2000, filed with the Securities and Eae Commission
on February 28, 2001
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ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (CONTINU ED)

(b)

Exhibits (Continued)

*(10)(e)

*(10)(f)

(10)(9)

*(10)(h)

*(10)(i)

(10)()

(10)(k)

(10)(

(10)(m)

(10)(n)

Second Amended and Restated Terminatioefe Agreement, dated March 18, 1997, betweeR#wistrant and
Leon Kopyt; incorporated by reference to Exhibi{d)do the Registrant’s Registration Statement omFS-1 (SEC
File No. 33:-23753), filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdgsion on March 21, 199

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datgdmiloer 30, 1996, between the Registrant, Intergsidn, Inc
and Leon Kopyt; incorporated by reference to ExHiBi(g) to the 1996 -K.

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreematggdday 31, 2002, between RCM Technologies, Ind.al of
its Subsidiaries with Citizens Bank of PennsylvaagmAdministrative Agent and Arranger; incorpodaby reference to
Exhibit 10 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Reportform 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002] fileh the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 52 20@"“ Second Quarter 2002 -Q").

Severance Agreement, dated June 10, 2002, betw@khTRchnologies, Inc. and Leon Kopyt; incorporalbgc
reference to Exhibit 10a to the Second Quarter 2@-Q.

Exhibit A to Severance Agreement General Releawerporated by reference to Exhibit 10b to the 8ddQuarte
2002 1¢-Q.

Amendment and Modification to Amended and Restdtedn and Security Agreement, dated December 3R,
between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Sdiasies and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Adsiriative Agent
and Arranger; incorporated by reference to ExHibik) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on FormKLbr the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2002, filed with the Seearand Exchange Commission on February 28, 2808mende
on March 3, 2003 (th*2002 1(-K").

Second Amendment and Modification to Amended anst®ed Loan and Security Agreement, dated Feb2&r2003
between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Sdiasies and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Adshiaiive Agent
and Arranger; incorporated by reference to ExHibif) to 2002 1-K).

Third Amendment and Modification to Amded and Restated Loan and Security Agreemeset] @xttober 1, 2003,
between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Sdiasies and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Adstriaiive Agent
and Arranger; incorporated by reference to ExIBiH to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Fofrfor the
quarter ended September 30, 2003, filed with theifges and Exchange Commission on November 632

Fourth Amendment and Modification tménded and Restated Loan and Security Agreemest] daly 23, 2004,
between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Sdiasies and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Adshiaiive Agent
and Arranger; incorporated by reference to ExHiba) to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on F&d¥Q for the
quarter ended July 3, 2004, filed with the Secesifitnd Exchange Commission on August 5, 2

Fifth Amendment and Modification to &mded and Restated Loan and Security Agreemerd datgust 7, 2006,
between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Sdiasies and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Adstriaiive Agent
and Arranger; incorporated by reference to ExHibita) to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on F&G¥Q for the
guarter ended July 1, 2006, filed with the Secesiitnd Exchange Commission on August 10, 2

36




ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (CONTINU ED)

(b)  Exhibits (Continued)

*(10)(0)

*(10)(p)

*(10)(a)

*(10)(1)

*(10)(u)

(10)(v)

*(10)(w)

*(10)(x)

(21)
(23.1)
(23.2)

(31.1)

(31.2)

Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 2@@0the Amended and Restated Employment Agreemaetgred into on
November 30, 1996, between Leon Kopyt and RCM Teldwies, Inc.; incorporated by reference to Exhilitl to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Ddwami2, 2007, filed with the Securities and Exclee@gmmission
on December 12, 2007 (tDecember 2007-K").

Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 2@@0the Second Amended and Restated TerminationfBeAgreement,
made March 18, 1997, between Leon Kopyt and RCMifielogies, Inc.; incorporated by reference to ExHib.2 to
the December 2007-K.

Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 2007, to ther@rce Agreement, entered into on June 12, 2@02een Leor
Kopyt and RCM Technologies, Inc.; incorporated éference to Exhibit 10.3 to the December 20-K.

The RCM Technologies, Inc. 2007 Omnibus Equity Cengation Plan; incorporated by reference to Annéa the
Registrant’s Proxy Statement, dated April 20, 200&d with the Securities and Exchange CommissinrApril 19,
2007.

Separation and Release Agreement, datgdi#27, 2008; incorporated by reference to ExI9i8itl to the Registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 21, 200& fwith the Securities and Exchange Commissiohogust 27,
2008.

Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security sgmtedated as of February 19, 2009, between |
Technologies, Inc. and all of its Subsidiariesjzeits Bank of Pennsylvania as Administrative Agerd Arranger and
the Financial Institutions Named therein as Lenderorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant's Current
Report on Form-K dated February 19, 2009, filed with the Secusii@d Exchange Commission on February 25, 2
Option Grant Agreement, dated April 21120to Richard D. Machon (filed as an exhibit te fRegistrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on April 23, 2010, and incorpatdterein by
reference)

Option Grant Agreement, dated April 21, 2010, t&&8ry Snodgrass (filed as an exhibit to the Regyi's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on April 23, 2010, and incorpatdterein by
reference)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant. (Filed herew

Consent of EisnerAmper LLP. (Filed herewi

Consent of Amper, Politziner & Mattia, LLP. (Filéerewith)

Certifications of Chief Executive OfficRequired by Rule 13a-14(a) of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934, as
amended. (Filed herewitl

Certifications of Chief Financial OfficRequired by Rule 13a-14(a) of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934, as
amended. (Filed herewitl
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (CONTINU ED)

(b)  Exhibits (Continued)

(32.1) Certifications of Chief Executive OfficRequired by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securitiesnarge Act of 1934, as
amended. (This exhibit shall not be deemed “filemt”"purposes of Section 18 of the Securities ErgleaAct of 1934,
as amended, or otherwise subject to the liabifitshat section. Further, this exhibit shall notdeemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing under Seeurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Séesifiixchange Act «
1934, as amended.) (Filed herew

(32.2) Certifications of Chief Financial OfficRequired by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securitiesharge Act of 1934, as
amended. (This exhibit shall not be deemed “filemt”"purposes of Section 18 of the Securities ErgleaAct of 1934,
as amended, or otherwise subject to the liabifitshat section. Further, this exhibit shall notdeemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing under Seeurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Séesifiixchange Act «
1934, as amended.) (Filed herew

*Constitutes a management contract or compensalamyop arrangemen
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

RCM Technologies, Inc.

Date: February 22, 201 By:/s/ Leon Kopy!
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer antebBlior

Date: February 22, 201 By:/s/ Kevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgéa Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
Registrant and in the capacities and on the datbeated.

Date: February 22, 201 By:/s/ Leon Kopy!
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer (Pipat
Executive Officer) and Directc

Date: February 22, 20 By:/s/ Kevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Seamg(Principal
Financial and Accounting Office

Date: February 22, 201 By:/s/ Norman S. Bersc
Norman S. Berson
Director

Date: February 22, 20 By:/s/ Robert B. Ker
Robert B. Kerr
Director

Date: February 22, 201 By:/s/ Richard D. Macho
Richard D. Machon
Director

Date: February 22, 201 By:/s/ Lawrence Needlem:
Lawrence Needlemar
Director

Date: February 22, 201 By:/s/ S. Gary Snodgra:
S. Gary Snodgras:
Director

39




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
FORM 10-K

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

Page
Consolidated Balance Sheets, January 1, 2011 ancda2, 201( F-2
Consolidated Statements of Income, Fiscal Yeare#ddnuary 1, 2011 and January 2, z F-3
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholBgrsty and Consolidate
Statements of Comprehensive Income, Fiscal Yeadeddanuary 1, 2011 and January 2, 2 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Fiscal Yeaded January 1, 2011
and January 2, 201 F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-6
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings F-31
Schedule I F-33




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per shanewnts, unless otherwise indicat:

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010

January 1 January 2
2011 2010
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $24,70« $10,94.
Accounts receivable, n 41,215 44,23
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 1,841 2,62¢
Deferred income tax asst 827 70t
Assets of discontinued operatic 2 2,534
Total current asse 68,58 61,04’
Property and equipment, r 3,29 4,53:
Other asset:
Deposits 18z 184
Goodwill 7,31¢ 7,31¢
Intangible assets, n 32t 464
Deferred income tax asst 3,30¢ 3,82¢
Total other asse’ 11,13( 11,79¢
Total asset $83,01: $77,36!
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expel $6,00¢ $6,93¢
Accrued payroll and related co: 6,95( 6,34(
Income taxes payab 39 -
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol 45 42€
Contingent consideratic 121 -
Total current liabilities 13,15¢ 13,70(
Contingent consideratic 24E 36€
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 5,000,000 shargwsrized
no shares issued or outstand - -
Common stock, $0.05 par value; 40,000,000 shart®ared;
13,220,445 shares issued and 13,171,048 sharearulitgy at
January 1, 2011 and 12,960,778 shares issued astdmding at January 2, 20 661 64¢
Additional paic-in capital 107,81° 107,26:
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 1,41¢ 1,26
Accumulated defici (40,079 (45,874
Treasury stock (49,397 shares, at ¢ (20€) -
Stockholders' equit 69,60¢ 63,30:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $83,01: $77,36¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amountgasotherwise indicate:

January 1 January 2
2011 2010
Revenue! $162,02. $171,73
Cost of service 115,83! 127,17:
Gross profil 46,187 44 ,55¢
Operating costs and expen:
Selling, general and administrati 35,82¢ 40,50¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,341 1,50z
Operating cost and expens 37,16¢ 42,01:
Operating incom 9,021 2,54¢
Other (expense) incon
Interest expense and other, (62) (55
Gain on foreign currency transactic 27 85
Legal settlemer - 9,75(
Other (expense) incon (34 9,78(
Income from continuing operations befc
income taxe 8,981 12,32¢
Income tax expense from continuing operati 2,57( 4,60¢
Income from continuing operatiol 6,415 7,715
Loss from discontinued operations,
net of tax benef (622) (795)
Net income $5,79¢ $6,92:
Basic and diluted net earnings (loss) per s
data:
Income from continuing operatiol $0.4¢ $0.6(
Loss from discontinued operatiot
net of tax benef ($0.05) ($0.06)
Net income $0.4¢ $0.5¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, sréiserwise indicatec

Accumulated

Common Stocl Additional Other Treasury Stocl
Issued Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Shares Amount Total
Balance, December 27, 20C 12,774,02 $63¢ $106,78t $72( ($52,799 - $_- $55,35.

Issuance of stock under

employee stock purchase p 86,75: 4 79 - - - - 83
Translation adjustmel - - - 547 - - - 547
Stock based compensation expe - - 181 - - - - 181
Shares issued for acquired compai 100,00( 5 214 - - - - 219
Net loss - - - - 6,927 - - 6,922
Balance, January 2, 201( 12,960,77 $64¢ $107,26: $1,267 ($45,879) - $ - $63,30!
Issuance of stock under

employee stock purchase p 74,17: 4 14E - - - - 14¢
Translation adjustmel - - - 14¢ - - - 14¢
Issuance of stock under stock

option plans 185,49! 9 93 - - - - 10z
Stock based compensation expe - - 317 - - - - 317
Common stock repurcha - - - - - 49,397 (20€) (20€)
Net income - - - - 5,79¢ - - 5,79t
Balance, January 1, 201: 13,220,44 $661 $107,81 $1,41¢ ($40,079 49,39° ($20€) $69,60¢

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2010

January 1 January 2
2011 2010
Net income $5,79¢ $6,92:
Foreign currency translation adjustm: 14¢ 547
Comprehensive incon $5,94! $7,46¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statement
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020

(Dollars in thousands unless otherwise indical

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $5,79¢ $6,92:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,38: 1,62t
Loss on disposal of fixed assets of discontinuestatons 26¢ 88
Gain on sale of discontinued operatit (149 -
Stocl-based compensation expel 317 181
Provision for losses on accounts receiv: 93 11F
Deferred income tax expen 40: 2,047
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl 5,25( 10,17:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 782 64%
Accounts payable and accrued expet (1,255 (1,14
Accrued payroll and related co: 30¢ (3,38¢)
Income taxes payab 13¢ (875)
Total adjustment 7,54t 9,46¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 13,34( 16,39
Cash flows from investing activitie
Property and equipment acquir (101) (802)
Decrease in deposi 3C 52
Cash from sale of discontinued operati 40C -
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of working cag - (900)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 32¢ (1,650
Cash flows from financing activitie
Sale of stock for employee stock purchase 14¢ 83
Exercise of stock optior 10z -
Common stock repurchas (20€) -
Net repayments on line of cre: - (4,900
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 45 (4,817)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvaémts 48 20z
Increase in cash and cash equival 13,76: 10,127
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 10,94 81F
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $24,70: $10,94:
Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid for
Interest $74 $67
Income taxe: $1,66¢ $2,51(
Non-cash investing activities relating to acquisitiarghase price adjustmel
Decrease goodwi $84( $ -
Decrease accounts payable and accrued exp $31: $ -
Decrease contingent considerat $521 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statement
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sla@neunts, unless otherwise indicat

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

RCM Technologies, Inc. (the “Company” or “RCM”)aspremier provider of business and technology swiatdesigned to enhance and
maximize the operational performance of its custenigrough the adaptation and deployment of advaimfermation technology and
engineering services. Additionally, the Compangvites specialty staffing services through its $gdgcHealth Care Services

group. RCM'’s offices are located in major metrataol centers throughout North America.

The consolidated financial statements are compe$d¢ide accounts of the Company and its wholly cdveegbsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have besimated in consolidation.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiaihform with current year presentation, see Néte

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers its holdings of highly lignidney-market instruments to be cash equivalerkgeiecurities mature within 90
days from the date of acquisition. These investmare carried at cost, which approximates faineal

The Company’s cash balances are maintained in atsbeld by major banks and financial institutiofi$ie majority of these balances
exceed federally insured amounts. At January 112hd January 2, 2010, $0.8 million and $0.1 anillirespectively, of cash and cash
equivalents were held in Canadian banks. At Janlia?2011, $0.2 million of cash and cash equivalevire held in Irish banks.

Fair Value of Financial | nstruments

The Companys carrying value of financial instruments, consigtprimarily of accounts receivable, approximatgas\¥alue. The Compat
does not have any off-balance sheet financialunsénts. The Company does not have derivative ptsda place to manage risks related
to foreign currency fluctuations for its foreignesgtions or for interest rate changes.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company’s accounts receivable are primarilyfdora trade customers. Credit is extended baseslaluation of customers’ financial
condition and, generally, collateral is not reqdirédccounts receivable payment terms vary andi@ted in the financial statements at
amounts due from customers net of an allowancddabtful accounts. Accounts outstanding longen tiii@ payment terms are conside
past due. The Company determines its allowanamhgidering a number of factors, including the tangf time trade accounts receivable
are past due, the Company’s previous loss histbeycustomer’s current ability to pay its obligatitm the Company, and the condition of
the general economy and the industry as a whotee Qompany writes off accounts receivable when Bespme uncollectible, and
payments subsequently received on such receivpldesusly written off are credited to bad debt exge.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sla@neunts, unless otherwise indicat

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Accrued and Unbilled Accounts Receivable and Work-in-Process

Unbilled receivables primarily represent revenussed whereby those services are ready to be lifleaf the balance sheet ending
date. Work-in-process primarily represents reveraggned under contracts which the Company is acoally precluded from invoicing
until future dates as project milestones are redlizSee Footnote 4 for further details.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost netoofnaglated depreciation and amortization and areedégted on the straight-line method
at rates calculated to provide for retirement aets at the end of their estimated useful livelse TCompany's ERP software system,
installed in 1999 and upgraded in 2004, is beinyeldated over fifteen years. The Company's V@Iphone system, the installation of
which was substantially complete at the end of 200Being depreciated over seven years. All dtfaedware and software as well as
furniture and office equipment is depreciated dixer years. Leasehold improvements are depreciatedthe shorter of the estimated life
of the asset or the lease term. The Company pat&s that it will begin to upgrade its current ES3Btem sometime in 2011.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the premium paid over thevalue of the net tangible and intangible assetsieed in business combinations. The
Company conducts its annual goodwill impairment ¢essof the Saturday closest to November 30 eaah ge more frequently if indicatc
of impairment exist. The Company periodically 3@ak whether any such indicators of impairmenttexssignificant amount of
judgment is involved in determining if an indicatdfrimpairment has occurred. Such indicators majuie a sustained, significant decline
in share price and market capitalization, a dedlinexpected future cash flows, a significant adeerthange in legal factors or in the
business climate, unanticipated competition anslmwer expected growth rates, among others. Fuiifithere is an indicator of an
impairment, the Company compares the fair valueagh of its reporting units to their respectiveyiag values and if the carrying amoi
of the goodwill exceeds fair value, an impairmexstslis recognized. Application of the goodwilpiairment test requires significant
judgments including estimation of future cash flowhich is dependent on internal forecasts, estamaif the longterm rate of growth fa
the businesses, the useful life over which cashdlwill occur and determination of weighted averagst of capital. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could materially affectietermination of fair value and/or conclusiongjoodwill impairment for each
reporting unit. The Company determined there m@aanpairment during the fiscal years ended Janta@p11 and January 2, 2010.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sla@neunts, unless otherwise indicat

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in atzouare with “Accounting for the Impairment or Dispbef Long-Lived

Assets.” Management periodically reviews theyiag amounts of long-lived assets to determine fieturrent events or circumstances
warrant adjustment to such carrying amounts. Amydirment is measured by the amount that the caywy@lue of such assets exceeds
their fair value, primarily based on estimated distted cash flows. Considerable management judgimeecessary to estimate the fair
value of assets. Assets to be disposed of ariedat the lower of their financial statement cargyamount or fair value, less cost to sell.

Software

In accordance with “Accounting for Costs of Compu#eftware Developed or Obtained for Internal Useftain costs related to the
development or purchase of internal-use softwagecapitalized and amortized over the estimateduuifsf of the software. During the
fiscal years ended January 1, 2011 and Januay1®, Zhe Company capitalized approximately $16%24#, respectively, for software
costs. At January 1, 2011 the net balance aftarmaalated depreciation for all software costs edigitd was $348.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbe’Accounting for Income Taxes” which requiras asset and liability approach
of accounting for income taxes. “Accounting focdme Taxes” requires assessment of the likelihdodadizing benefits associated with
deferred tax assets for purposes of determininghven@ valuation allowance is needed for such defeiax assets. The Company and its
wholly owned U.S. subsidiaries file a consolidafiederal income tax return.

The Company also follows the provisions of “Accdngtfor Uncertainty in Income Taxes” which presesba model for the recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expéotbd taken in a tax return, and provides guidamcderecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, disclosure and transitdnJanuary 1, 2011 the Company did not have agwifstant unrecognized tax

benefits. The Company’s policy is to record ins¢i@nd penalty, if any, as interest expense.

Revenue Recognition
The Company derives its revenues from several sgsur€he Compang’ Engineering Services and Information Technologyvise:

segments perform consulting and project soluti@mgises. All of the Compang’segments perform staff augmentation serviceslaride
revenue from permanent placement fees. The majofrihe Company's revenues are invoiced on a éintematerials basis.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sla@neunts, unless otherwise indicat

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Project Services
The Company recognizes revenues in accordance'Rébenue Recognition” which clarifies applicationleS. generally accepted

accounting principles to revenue transactions jeletgervices are generally provided on a cost;fixsd-fee or time-and-material

basis. Typically, a customer will outsource a tB$e project or activity and the Company assumggamsibility for the performance of
such project or activity. The Company recognizg&nues and associated costs on a gross basiviassare provided to the customer
and costs are incurred using its employees. Thepaay, from time to time, enters into contractaurgqgg the completion of specific
deliverables. The Company may recognize revennekase deliverables at the time the client accapdsapproves the deliverables. In
instances where project services are providedfoed-price basis and the contract will extend beya 12-month period, revenue is
recorded in accordance with the terms of each aontin some instances, revenue is billed andrdecbat the time certain milestones are
reached, as defined in the contract. In otheams, revenue is billed and recorded based uptractual rates per hour (i.e., percentage
of completion). In addition, some contracts camt&erformance Fees” (bonuses) for completing drechunder budget. Performance
Fees, if any, are recorded when the Company i@naddy certain of collection. Some contracts &ilwit revenues and billings to
maximum amounts. Provision for contract losseanif, are made in the period such losses are deedmFor contracts where there is a
deliverable, the work is not complete on a speciéiiverable and the revenue is not recognizedctisés are deferred. The associated
costs are expensed when the related revenue igniezed.

Consulting and Staffing Services

Revenues derived from consulting and staffing ses/are recorded on a gross basis as servicesrémenped and associated costs have
been incurred using employees of the Companyhdse circumstances, the Company assumes the rgceptability of its employees to
its customers.

In certain cases, the Company may utilize otherpaoies and their employees to fulfill customer regqaents. In these cases, the
Company receives an administrative fee for arrapén, billing for, and collecting the billings eked to these companies. The custonr
typically responsible for assessing the work oktheompanies who have responsibility for acceptatuf their personnel to the
customer. Under these circumstances, the Compagpytsted revenues are net of associated cose(i@#ly recognizing the net
administrative fee only).

Permanent Placement Services

The Company earns permanent placement fees fromdprg permanent placement services. Fees foeplants are recognized at the
time the candidate commences employment. The Coyngizgarantees its permanent placements on a paddvagés for 90 days. In the
event a candidate is not retained for the 90-daip@ethe Company will provide a suitable replacatrmandidate. In the event a
replacement candidate cannot be located, the Compifirprovide a prorated refund to the client. Atowance for refunds, based upon
the Company'’s historical experience, is recordethénfinancial statements. Revenues are recomdedgross basis.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per slaameunts, unless otherwise indicat

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Concentration

During fiscal year ended January 1, 2011, Unitechfielogies Corporation and Bruce Power accounte@33% and 10.8% of the
Company'’s revenues and as of January 1, 2011 epgees22.1% and 7.9% of the Company’s accountsvedae, respectively. No other
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Compamysnues. The Company's five, ten and twenty frgestomers accounted for
approximately 36.9%, 44.1% and 54.6%, respectivalyhe Company's revenues for fiscal year endedaly 1, 2011.

During fiscal year ended January 2, 2010, Unitechfielogies Corporation accounted for 12.7% of tbenany’s revenues and 22.2% of
the Company’s accounts receivable. No other cust@ocounted for 10% or more of the Company’s reesnThe Company's five, ten
and twenty largest customers accounted for apprateiy 30.0%, 36.7% and 47.3%, respectively, ofCbenpany's revenues for fiscal y
ended January 2, 2010.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company’s Canadiadh laeland subsidiaries is that subsidiary’s lanakency. Assets and liabilities are
translated at period-end exchange rates. Incomi@@gpense items are translated at weighted aveatem of exchange prevailing during
the year. Any translation adjustments are includetie accumulated other comprehensive incomeustdn stockholders’

equity. Transactions executed in different currencesulting in exchange adjustments are trarmbktspot rates and resulting foreign
exchange transaction gains and losses are incladbd results of operations.

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income aregorcurrency translation adjustments.
Per Share Data

Basic net income per share is calculated usingviiighted-average number of common shares outstguldining the period. Diluted net
income per share is calculated using the weightedage number of common shares plus dilutive patecdmmon shares outstanding
during the period. Potential dilutive common skasensist of stock options and other stock-baseatdswinder the Company's stock
compensation plans, when their impact is dilutiBacause of the Company’s capital structure, glbreed earnings pertain to common
shareholders and no other adjustments are necessary

Share - Based Compensation

The Company recognizes share-based compensatiotheveesting period of an award based on fairevaliuthe grant date determined
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. @erassumptions are used to determine the faiewafistock-based payment awards on
traded options, and because changes in the inputmgtions can materially affect the fair valuerastie, the existing models may not
provide a reliable single measure of the fair vailfithe employee stock options. Management assésseassumptions and methodologies
used to calculate estimated fair value of stoclea®mpensation on a regular basis. Circumstanegschange and additional data may
become available over time, which could resultiarges to these assumptions and methodologiehareby materially impact our fair
value determination. See Note 11 for additionakstbased compensation information.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sla@neunts, unless otherwise indicat

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. TEateértising expense was $632 and $864 for thel fjgaas ended January 1, 2011 and
January 2, 2010, respectively.

FISCAL YEAR

The Company follows a 52/53 week fiscal reportiatendar ending on the Saturday closest to Deceftbefhe fiscal year ended Jant
2, 2010 (fiscal 2009) was a 53-week reporting y&dre fiscal year ended January 1, 2011 (fiscaDR0das a 52-week reporting year.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND UNCERTAINTIES
The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondféttae reported amounts of assets and liakslitievenues and expenses and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiestual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company uses estimates to calculate an allevianaoubtful accounts on its accounts receivalilagse estimates can be significant
to the operating results and financial positiothaf Company.

The Company has risk participation arrangements keispect to workers compensation and health natgdance. The amounts included
in the Company’s costs related to this risk pgstition are estimated and can vary based on chamgesumptions, the Company’s claims
experience or the providers included in the assedismsurance programs.

The Company can be affected by a variety of fadtarsiding uncertainty relating to the performamnée¢he general economy, competition,
demand for the Company’s services, adverse libgadind claims and the hiring, training and retantbkey employees.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Company’s accounts receivable are compriséollas/s:

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010

Billed $31,26! $35,37:
Accrued and unbille: 3,381 2,16(
Work-in-progress 7,85¢ 7,88
Allowance for doubtful accounts

and sales discour (1,297 (1,18
Accounts receivable, n $41,21: $44,23:
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sla@neunts, unless otherwise indicat

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are comprised of the fothgi

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Equipment and furnitur $2,73¢ $2,92¢
Computers and syster 5,86¢ 6,59¢
Leasehold improvemen 1,064 1,16(
9,667 10,68
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize 6,372 6,152
Property and equipment, r $3,29¢ $4,53:

The Company writes off fully depreciated assethigaar. In fiscal years ended January 1, 2011Jandary 2, 1010, the write-offs were
$975 and $837, respectively. For the fiscal yeaded January 1, 2011 and January 2, 1010, defioacéxpense was $1,202 and $1,400,
respectively.

6. ACQUISITIONS
General

In connection with certain acquisitions, the Compinobligated to pay future contingent considerato the sellers upon the acquired
business achieving certain earnings targets ov@geranging from two to four years following thequisition. In general, the future
contingent consideration amounts fall into onewsd tategories: (a) Deferred Consideration - fixewants due if the acquisition achieves
a base level of earnings which has been deternaihthee time of acquisition and (b) Earnouts — ant®payable that are not fixed and are
based on the growth in excess of the base levelres:

Future Contingent Payments

The Company has two active acquisition agreemexfasimg to the acquisitions of the assets of Nu8nét PSG, both as defined below,
whereby future contingent consideration may beeand paid. Prior to December 2007 and the Nugofiisition, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued “Busmi@& mbinations” which did not require that therastied fair value of contingent
consideration be recorded as a liability. Purst@aaiccounting standards in effect at that time,Gompany has not recorded any liability
associated with the contingent consideration treat be paid in connection with its March 19, 2008uasition of the operating assets of
NuSoft Solutions, Inc. (“NuSoft”). Prior to Aprl009 and the Company’s July 6, 2009 acquisitiothefoperating assets of Project
Solutions Group, Inc. (“PSG”), FASB issued “Accauagtfor Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumedinsiness Combinations That
Arise from Contingenciesivhich requires that the fair value of any futuretiogent consideration be recorded as a liabilitiie Compan
has determined that the estimated fair value ofdted future contingent consideration (Deferrech§ideration and Earnouts) associated
with the PSG acquisition is approximately $0.4 miill The amount actually paid, if any, may subsédy exceed the estimated fair
value. The Company has recorded this liability emtdeased its goodwill by a like amount.

F-12




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sla@neunts, unless otherwise indicat

6.

ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)
Future Contingent Payments (Continued)

The Company’s outstanding Deferred Consideratidigations potentially due after January 1, 2011ichhrelate to the NuSoft and PSG
acquisitions, could result in the following maximieferred Consideration payments:

Fiscal Year Endin Amoun
December 31, 201 $94<
December 29, 201 164
December 28, 201 184
Maximum deferred consideratic $1,29:

The Company cannot estimate future Deferred Cordid@ payments with any certainty. However, tleempany does not believe that
Deferred Consideration earned and payable in Hovalfiyear ending December 31, 2011 will exceed $E8tnouts, if any, cannot be
estimated with any certainty and as such are mhidied above. Earnouts paid, if any, are notyikelbe material.

Project Solutions Group, Inc.

On July 6, 2009, the Company purchased the opgratirets of PSG. PSG is a specialty providerfofrimation technology services. P:
provides expert project management and trainingices to a diverse client base. PSG helps cligeydoy Microsoft's project managem
tools to streamline and coordinate project-basgidiives across their organizations.

The acquisition was effective as of June 28, 20@9teas been accounted for in accordance with “BssitCombinations” andAtcounting
for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in Bigsis Combinations that Arise from Contingenciesctordingly, the results of
operations of the acquired company have been iediudthe consolidated results of operations ofGbmpany from the effective date
are included in the Information Technology segment.

The PSG purchase consideration consisted of $0li&min cash and 100,000 shares of the Compamytswon stock, valued at $0.2
million. The fair value of the common shares isbuas determined based on the closing market pfitee Company's common stock on
the last trading day prior to the effective datehef acquisition. Post closing consideration cstesif potential Deferred Consideration
payments up to $0.5 million and additional Earrmayments, with both amounts contingent upon PS@wicly certain base levels of
operating income for certain post closing periadlbving the purchase. Additionally, the Compargarded a liability of approximately
$0.4 million for the estimated net preset valuéutdire contingent consideration potentially due@mnection with the PSG

acquisition. During fiscal 2010, the Company aneshdertain terms of the PSG purchase agreemenhwibit the net effect of reducing a
portion of the initial cash price and correspondijeg@dwill. Since this adjustment to the provisioba@ounts was identified during the
measurement period as defined in authoritative auing literature, the Company recognized the dadjest as if the amendment for the
business combination had been completed as otctii@sition date (i.e., via retrospective adjustniertccordingly, liability accounts and
goodwill were reduced by $840 as of both JanuaB011 and January 2, 2010. The effect of thesestrdpnts on the Company's
consolidated financial statements is not material.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sla@neunts, unless otherwise indicat

6.

ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)
Project Solutions Group, I nc. (Continued)

The acquisition has been accounted for under thehpse method of accounting. The amended purchiaseql approximately $0.7
million has been allocated as follows:

Customer relationshif $25:
Restricted covenan 38
Goodwill 41€

$707

Pro Forma Results of Operations

The following (unaudited) results of operations déeen prepared assuming the PSG acquisition ltadred as of the beginning of the
periods presented. Those results are not nedgssdaicative of results of future operations ormreéults that would have occurred had the
acquisition occurred as of the beginning of theéqur presented.

Fiscal Years Ende

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Revenue! $162,02. $174,31
Operating income from continuing operatic $9,02: $2,74¢
Income from continuing operatiol $6,417 $7,837
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operst $0.4¢ $0.6(

GOODWILL

As of November 27, 2010, the Company conductedritgial assessment of goodwill for impairment. 3seas goodwill for impairment,
the Company first compares the fair value of ifsoréing units with their net book value. The fe@lue of the reporting units is estimated
using discounted expected future cash flows. Iffflirevalue of the reporting units exceeds theirbmaok value, goodwill is not impaired,
and no further testing is necessary. If the nekh@due of the reporting units exceeds their failue, a second test is performed to mea
the amount of impairment loss, if any. To meashesamount of any impairment loss, the Company deters the implied fair value of
goodwill in the same manner as if the reportingamiere being acquired in a business combinatipacifically, the fair value of the
reporting units is allocated to all of the asseis kabilities of that unit, including any unrecaged intangible assets, in a hypothetical
calculation that would yield the implied fair valoégoodwill. If the implied fair value of goodwii less than the goodwill recorded on the
balance sheet, an impairment charge for the diffarés recorded.

Based on the results of the annual assessmenbdfigibfor impairment, the fair value of all reporg units exceed ed net book value as of
November 2 7 , 20 10 and, there fore, there waspairment of goodwill. Due to the thin tradiafithe Company stock in the public
marketplace and the impact of the control premiwhd by a relatively few shareholders, the Compawgschot consider the market
capitalization of the Company the most appropnaéasure of fair value of goodwill for our reportingits. We look to earnings/revenue
multiples of similar companies recently completaggjuisitions and the ability of our reporting undsgenerate cash flows as better
measures of the fair value of our reporting urditej under such calculations the fair value excedudecorded goodwill by at least 25%
for each of the reporting units. Accordingly, Bempany has determined it is not necessary toatisdetailed assumptions or estimates
used in its impairment test.
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7. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The determination of the fair value of the repagtimits requires the Company to make significatitreges and assumptions that affect
reporting unit's expected future cash flows. Thestmates and assumptions primarily include, beinat limited to, the discount rate,
terminal growth rates, operating income before dejption and amortization and capital expenditfwescasts. Due to the inherent
uncertainty involved in making these estimateq)alatesults could differ from those estimates.ddifion, changes in underlying
assumptions would have a significant impact oneeithe fair value of the reporting units or the dwdl impairment charge, if any.

The allocation of the fair value of the reportingjta to individual assets and liabilities withirpreting units also requires the Company to
make significant estimates and assumptions. Theatibn requires several analyses to determine/&hire of assets and liabilities
including, among others, customer relationships-campetition agreements and current replacemests ¢or certain property, plant and
equipment.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfa fiscal years ended January 1, 2011 and Jagua§10 as amended are as follows:

Information Specialty
Technology Engineering Health Care Total
Balance as of December 27, 2( $4,73¢ $ - $1,70: $6,437
Goodwill acquired during 20C 41€ 10C - 51€
Contingent consideration recorc 36€ - - 36€
Balance as of January 1, 2011 and
January 2, 2010 $5,51¢ $10( $1,70: $7,31¢
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of intangibsetssfor the fiscal years ended January 1, 201Dandary 2, 2010 are as follows:

Information Specialty
Technology Engineering Health Care Total
Balance as of December 27, 2( $197 $7¢ $ $27¢
Intangibles acquired during fiscal 20 291 - 291
Amortizationof intangibles during
fiscal 200¢ (68) (35) (103)
Balance as of January 2, 2C 42C 44 464
Amortization of intangibles during
fiscal 201C (105) (34) (139)
Balance as of January 1, 2C $31¢ $1C $ $32¢
Schedule Intangible Asset Clas:
Specialty
Information Health Care
Technology Engineering Services Total
Balance as of January 1, 2C
Restricted covenan $24 $2 $ $2€
Customer relationshiy 291 8 $29¢
$31t $1C $ $32¢
Expected Future Amortization Exper
Specialty
Information Health Care
Fiscal Yeal Technology Engineering Services Total
2011 $10¢ $1C $ $11t
2012 10k - 10E
2013 10E - 10E
$31¢t $1C $ $32¢
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9. LINE OF CREDIT

The Company and its subsidiaries are party to a Bgreement with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, radted and restated effect
February 20, 2009, which provides for a $15 milliemolving credit facility and includes a slibiit of $5.0 million for letters of credit (tt
“Revolving Credit Facility”). Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bé&sterest at one of two alternative rates, as setkeloy th
Company at each incremental borrowing. Thesergltares are: (i) LIBOR (London Interbank Offeredt®a plus applicable margin,
(ii) the agent bank's prime rate. The Company pksgs unused line fees based on the amount of ékelRng Credit Facility that is n
drawn.

All borrowings under the Revolving Credit Faciléye collateralized by all of the assets of the Camypand its subsidiaries and a pledg
the stock of its subsidiaries. The Revolving Cré&dicility also contains various financial and rfarancial covenants, such as restrictions
on the Company’s ability to pay dividends. The 8leing Credit Facility expires in August 2011. Whxend to seek to extend or replace
the Revolving Credit Facility prior to such timewk determine that doing so would be in alignmeitth wur financing needs.

There were no borrowings during the fiscal yeareshdanuary 1, 2011. During the fiscal year endgadidry 2, 2010, the Company’
outstanding borrowings ranged from $dilion to $4.9 million. The majority of borrowirsgduring the fiscal year ended January 2, .
were subject to alternative (i) LIBOR (London Iritenk Offered Rate), plus applicable margin on @it of 30 days or more. At Jant
1, 2011 and January 2, 2010, there were lettecsedfit outstanding for $0.9 million and $1.6 millicrespectively. At January 1, 2011,
Company had availability for additional borrowingsder the Revolving Credit Facility of $14.1 mitio

10. PER SHARE DATA

The number of common shares used to calculate badidiluted earnings per share for fiscal yeadedrdanuary 1, 2011 and January 2,
2010 was determined as follows:

Fiscal Years Ende

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Basic shares outstandi 13,053,59 12,888,53
Dilutive effect of stock option 148,84. 3,991
Dilutive shares 13,202,43 12,892,53

For the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011, there 80,900 options not included in the calculatbcommon stock equivalents because
the exercise price of the options exceeded theageemarket price during the year.

For the fiscal year ended January 2, 2010, there 289,594 options not included in the calcutattbcommon stock equivalents
because the exercise price of the options excethdealverage market price during the year.
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10. PER SHARE DATA (CONTINUED)

Unissued shares of common stock were reservetiédiotiowing purposes:

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Exercise of options outstandil 1,101,59. 1,564,59.
Future grants of options or sha 415,60( 426,10(
Shares reserved for employee stock purchase 320,36« 394,53t
Total 1,837,55! 2,385,23

11. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

At January 1, 2011, the Company had five shareebasgloyee compensation plans. The Company meathedair value of stock
options, if and when granted, based on the Bladieles method and using the closing market pridcd@Company’s common stock on
the date of grant. Grants vest over periods ranfyom one to three years and expire within 10 yediissuance. Share-based
compensation expense related to awards is amoitizectordance with applicable vesting periodsgiglire straight-line method.

Share-based compensation expense of $317 and $i8fewognized for the fiscal years ended Janua&@1l1 and January 2, 2010,
respectively.

The risk-free rate of return is based on the yidltd.S. Treasury Strips with terms equal to theeeted life of the options as of the grant
date. The expected term of option is based oofiist stock option exercise experience. The Compesed its historical stock price
volatility to compute the expected stock price tititg. The expected dividend yield is based oea @ompany’s practice of not paying
dividends. The annual forfeiture rate is basethenCompany’s historical experience. The Blackebeh option weighted average
assumptions used in the valuation of stock optfonshe fiscal years ended January 1, 2011 anda¥grflj 2010 were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ende

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Weighted average ri-free interest rat 2.52% 2.23%
Expected term of optio 5 year: 5 year:
Expected stock price volatilit 65% 67%
Expected dividend yiel $0.C $0.C
Annual forfeiture ratt 6.12% 12.9%
Weightec-average grant date fair val $1.9¢ $1.0¢
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11. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
1992 Incentive Stock Option Plan (the 1992 Plan)

The 1992 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockelideApril 1992 and amended in April 1998, provdder the issuance of up to
500,000 shares of common stock per individual fizefs, directors, and key employees of the Companits subsidiaries through
February 13, 2002, at which time the 1992 PlanrexpiThe options issued were intended to be ineestock options pursuant to Section
422A of the Internal Revenue Code. The option seware not to exceed 10 years and the exercise was not to be less than the fair
market value of the shares at the time of gramte Compensation Committee of the Board of Direatietermined the vesting period at
time of grant for each of these options. As of damud, 2011, options to purchase 57,455 sharesrmofiton stock granted under the 1992
Plan were outstanding.

1994 Non-employee Directors Stock Option Plan (i#d@4 Plan)

The 1994 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockelideMay 1994 and amended in April 1998, proviftadthe issuance of up to
110,000 shares of common stock to non-employeetdire of the Company through February 19, 2004héth time the 1994 Plan
expired. Options granted under the 1994 Plan wexeted at fair market value at the date of gramd, the exercise of options is conting
upon service as a director for a period of one.y€xtions granted under the 1994 Plan terminaterven optionee ceases to be a director
of the Company. As of January 1, 2011, optionsuiehase 20,000 shares of common stock granted thmel&994 Plan were outstanding.

1996 Executive Stock Option Plan (the 1996 Plan)

The 1996 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockhelideAugust 1996 and amended in April 1999, predifor the issuance of up to
1,250,000 shares of common stock to officers arydekeployees of the Company and its subsidiariesutitt January 1, 2006, at which
time the 1996 Plan expired. Options are genegaliyted at fair market value at the date of grdiite Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors determined the vesting periothattime of grant. As of January 1, 2011, optitmpurchase 598,545 shares of
common stock granted under the 1996 Plan wereamdstg.

2000 Employee Stock Incentive Plan (the 2000 Plan)

The 2000 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockinelideApril 2001, provides for the issuance of afdt500,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock to officers and key empleyaehe Company and its subsidiaries or to coaststand advisors utilized by the
Company. The Compensation Committee of the BofRirectors could award incentive stock optionsion-qualified stock options, as
well as stock appreciation rights, and determimedviesting period at the time of grant. As of &amd, 2011, options to purchase 276,
shares of common stock granted under the 2000virta@ outstanding.

The 1992 Plan, 1994 Plan, 1996 Plan and 2000 Péexpired and therefore no shares are availablisgoance.
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11. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the 200@)Pla

The 2007 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockeldeJune 2007, provides for the issuance of ufd000 shares of the Company’s
common stock to officers, non-employee directonspleyees of the Company and its subsidiaries optwsultants and advisors utilized by
the Company. The maximum aggregate number of stodreur common stock with respect to which allngsanay be made under the
Plan to any individual during any fiscal year i9930 shares. The maximum aggregate number aéslofdiour common stock that may
be subject to grants of stock units, performanegesh stock awards and other stock-based awards umatkr the Plan to any individual
during any calendar year is 350,000 shares. Thmep&asation Committee of the Board of Directors igirges the vesting period at the
time of grant. As of January 1, 2011, 415,600 shaf common stock were available for future gramider the 2007 Plan, and options to
purchase 149,400 shares of common stock grantezt timel 2007 Plan were outstanding.

As of January 1, 2011, the Company had approxim$EB6 of total unrecognized compensation costedlto non-vested awards granted
under the Company’s various share-based planshvwhé&Company expects to recognize over approxignatthree-year period. These
amounts do not include the cost of any additiopdioms that may be granted in future periods dectfany potential changes in the
Company’s forfeiture rate.

Transactions related to all stock options are Hgvig:

All Stock Options Outstandin
Weighted Averag:

Shares Exercise Prict

Options outstanding as of December 27, 2 1,293,901 $4.4¢
Options grante 365,19: $1.8¢
Options exercise 0 -
Options forfeited/cancelle (94,500 $4.4F
Options outstanding as of January 2, 2 1,564,59: $3.81
Options exercisable as of January 2, 2 1,162,401 $4.32
Intrinsic value of outstanding stock options adarfiuary 2, 201 $231

Options outstanding as of January 2, 2 1,564,59: $3.81%
Options grante: 20,00( $3.4¢
Options exercised, n (185,49 $2.6¢
Options forfeited in cashless exerci: (226,509 $3.32
Options forfeited/cancelle (71,000 $5.01%
Options outstanding as of January 1, 2 1,101,599 $4.1(
Options exercisable as of January 1, 2 887,40( $4.5%
Intrinsic value of outstanding stock options agafiuary 1, 201 $84:

Weighted average grant date fair value of stockooptissued during fiscal year enc

January 1, 201 $1.9¢
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11. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

A summary of the status of our nonvested stockoogtbutstanding as of January 1, 2011, and chahges) the year then ended is
presented as follows:

Weighed-Average

Grant-Date
Nonvested Stock Optior Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at January 2, 20 402,19: $1.41
Granted 20,00( $1.99
Vested (193,500 $1.75
Forfeited (14,500 $1.05
Nonvested at January 1, 20 214,19 $1.17

The following table summarizes information abowic&toptions outstanding at January 1, 2011:

Weighted-Average

Range of Number of Remaining Weighted-Average
Exercise Price Outstanding Option Contractual Life Exercise Prict

Outstanding Vested Outstanding Vested Outstandinc Vested
$0.95- $0.95 20,00( 0 8.18 0 $0.95 $0.00
$1.73- $2.50 183,69: 14,50( 8.35 6.69 $2.03 $2.10
$3.06- $4.40 646,50( 626,50( 3.89 3.72 $4.18 $4.20
$4.70- $6.91 216,40( 211,40( 3.92 3.85 $5.03 $5.02
$9.16- $9.81 35,00( 35,00( 6.54 6.54 $9.62 $9.62

1,101,59. 887,40(

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company implemented the 2001 Employee Stoc&Rse Plan (the “Purchase Plan”) with shareholperaval, effective January 1,
2001. Under the Purchase Plan, employees meetitgjrc specific employment qualifications are dligito participate and can purchase
shares of common stock semi-annually through pbglealuctions at the lower of 85% of the fair mankalue of the stock at the
commencement or end of the offering period. Thelpase plan permits eligible employees to purcBhsees of common stock through
payroll deductions for up to 10% of qualified compation. During the fiscal year ended January1]12there were 74,172 shares issued
under the Purchase Plan for net proceeds of $24%f January 1, 2011, there were 320,364 sharaitable for issuance under the
Purchase Plan. Compensation expense, represémimiscount to the quoted market price, for theeRase Plan for the fiscal years en
January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010 was $60 and&gfgctively.

On June 18, 2009, the Company's stockholders apdranr amendment to the Purchase Plan increasingtéh@umber of shares of
common stock authorized for purchase by 300,0@0n(f600,000 to 800,000 shares) and to extend thedéthe Purchase Plan such thi
will terminate on December 31, 2018.

12. TREASURY STOCK TRANSACTIONS
Our Board of Directors instituted a share repurel@®gram in February 2010, which authorized tipeirehase of up to $7.5 million of t
Company'’s outstanding shares of our common stopkeatailing market prices, from time to time oviee subsequent 12 months. During
the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011, the Compmgmychased 49,397 shares at a total cost of ajppatedy $206, or an average price of
$4.17 per share.
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13.

14.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-17, Tof05 —Revenue Recognition — Milestone MetktdiSA 2010-17"), which

provides guidance on defining a milestone and deteng when it may be appropriate to apply the stdee method of revenue
recognition for research or development transastiofhe amendments in ASU 2010-17 are effectiva prospective basis for milestones
achieved in fiscal years beginning on or after JU,e2010, and interim periods within those yedtarly adoption is permitted; however,
if a Company elects to early adopt, the amendmaeist tme applied retrospectively from the beginnifthe year of adoption. The
Company has adopted ASU 2010-17 effective as obdggnning of the fiscal year ended January 1, 20ftldue to nonactivity of any
applicable transactions, it did not impact its adisted results of operations.

Other accounting standards that have been issuga@posed by the FASB and SEC and/or other stasésiiing bodies that do not
require adoption until a future date are not exgetd have a material impact on the consolidateghfiial statements upon adoption.

SEGMENT INFORMATION — CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The Company follows “Disclosures about SegmentnoEnterprise and Related Information,” which dithbs standards for companies
to report information about operating segmentsgegguhic areas and major customers. The accouptiligjes of each segment are the
same as those described in the summary of signifaaecounting policies (see Note 1).

Segment operating income includes selling, gererdladministrative expenses directly attributablthat segment as well as charges for
allocating corporate costs to each of the opera@gments. The following tables reflect the resaftthe segments consistent with the
Company’s management system:

Fiscal Year Ended Information Specialty Health

January 1, 2011 Technology Engineering Care Corporate Total
Revenue $71,59° $64,55! $25,86° $ - $162,02.
Cost of service 51,31¢ 47,66¢ 16,85( - 115,83¢
Selling, general and administrati 18,21 10,73: 6,88( - 35,82t
Depreciation and amortizatic 511 697 13z - 1,341
Operating incom: $1,557 $5,46( $2,00¢ $ - $9,02!
Total asset $16,22¢ $25,38: $9,21¢ $32,18t $83,01:
Capital expenditure $12 $4€ $ - $41 $101
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14. SEGMENT INFORMATION — CONTINUING OPERATIONS ( CONTINUED)

Fiscal Year Ended Information Specialty

January 2, 2010 Technology Engineerinc Health Care Corporate Total
Revenue $83,99: $62,22( $25,52( $ - $171,73:
Cost of service 62,67¢ 48,03 16,46¢ - 127,17:
Selling, general and administrati 21,96: 11,20¢ 7,34z - 40,50¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 65¢ 701 14z - 1,50:
Operating (loss) incom ($1,307 $2,28. $1,57: $ - $2,54¢
Total asset $20,07- $24,92( $8,16¢ $24,21( $77,36¢
Capital expenditure $62 $43: $2 $304 $80z

The Company derives a majority of its revenue faompanies headquartered in the United States. riregaeported for each operating
segment are all from external customers. The Comadomiciled in the United States and its segsieperate in the United States,
Canada, Puerto Rico and Ireland. Revenues aricassats by geographic area for the fiscal yeade@danuary 1, 2011 and January 2,
2010 are as follows:

January 1 January 2
2011 2010
Revenue!

United State: $131,89! $145,91(
Canade 26,85( 22,54(
Puerto Ricc 3,15¢ 3,281
Ireland 12C -
$162,02; $171,73:

Total Assets
United State: $69,93: $65,18(
Canade 11,73¢ 10,85:
Puerto Ricc 1,01(C 1,337
Ireland 337 -
$83,01. $77,36¢

F-23




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per sla@neunts, unless otherwise indicat

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In September 2010, the Company sold the fixed atzhgible assets associated with its light indaktmd clerical staffing business loce
in southern California and doing business undentirae Intertec. Accounts receivable and certaantgarm liabilities of this business

unit were retained by the Company. The Compangived cash of $400 and recognized a gain of $14Besale of Intertec. The Inter
business unit was grouped with its Specialty He@lihe business unit in the Company’s formerly na@ethmercial Services segment.

In March 2010, the Company closed its Oracle bssinmit located in southern California. The closesiness unit, included in the
Company'’s Information Technology segment, sold @raoftware applications and provided implementatf@sting and maintenance
services for the suite of Oracle and related softvegplications. The Company may experience coetiroperation losses in its Oracle
business unit as a result of representations anchmtées made in association with certain complgi@gects but the Company does not
anticipate any material losses, if any.

Assets and liabilities of Intertec and the Oraalgibess unit have been classified as assets dnilities of discontinued

operations. Intertec and the Oracle businessresifits of operations for fiscal year ended Jan@iaB011 have been accounted for as
discontinued operations. Consolidated Balance tStweef, and Consolidated Statement of Incomehfeffiscal year ended January 2, 2
have been reclassified to be consistent with theenatiyear presentation.

The net assets and liabilities of discontinued ati@ns consist of:

January 1 January 2
2011 2010

Assets:

Accounts receivable, n $2 $2,12:

Prepaid expenses and other current a: - 48

Property and equipment, r - 23t

Deposits - 28

Goodwill - 101
Total asset $2 $2,53¢
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expel $4E $25¢

Accrued payroll and related co: - 172
Total liabilities $4E $42¢
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
The loss from discontinued operations consists of:

Fiscal Years Ende

January 1 January 2
2011 2010

Revenue! $11,68¢ $17,66:

Cost of service 10,73¢ 15,38t

Gross profil 95E 2,271

Operating costs and expen:

Selling, general and administrati 1,82¢ 3,371

Depreciation and amortizatic 41 11¢€

Loss on disposal of fixed ass! 26¢ -

2,13t 3,49¢

Operating loss from discontinued operati (1,180 (1,21¢

Income tax benef 48C 428

Net operating loss from discontinued operati (700 (795)
Gain on sale of discontinued operatic

net of tax expense of $i 78 -

Net loss from discontinued operatic ($622) ($795)

16. INCOME TAXES
The components of income tax expense from continajperations are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ende

January 1 January 2
2011 2010
Current

Federal $57 $81¢
State and loce 99C 94t
Foreign 1,12( 79¢
2,167 2,562

Deferred
Federal 312 2,08:
State 91 (36)
408 2,047
Total $2,57( $4,60¢
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16. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

The income tax provisions for continuing operatiogsonciled to the tax computed at the statutodeFa rate was:

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010

Tax at statutory rate (cred 34.(% 34.(%
State income taxes, net of Fede

income tax benef 8.C 4.1
Goodwill and intangible asset tax deduct (14.9 -
Permanent difference 2.C 1.3
Foreign income tax effe: (0.7) (1.7)
Other, ne 0.2 (0.3
Total income tax expent 28.6% 37.4%

At January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010, deferreddsets and liabilities consist of the following:

January 1, January 2, January 1, January 2,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Current Long Term

Deferred tax asset
Loss carryforward $ - $20¢ $ - $ -
Allowance for doubtful accoun 51€ 47¢ - -
Acquisition amortization, ne - - 3,30: 3,82¢
Reserves and accru: 622 63¢ - -
Other 22 - - -
Valuation allowanct - (208) - -
Net 1,16( 1,11¢ 3,30: 3,82¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Prepaid expense defer (333) (413 - -

(339 (413 -
Net deferred tax asse $827 $70¢ $3,30! $3,82¢

The Company recognized a nonrecurring current éefit of approximately $1.6 million due to theatiste nature of the first quarter
fiscal 2010 goodwill and intangible asset tax deiducfor the liquidation of its Oracle businesstunibsidiary described in Note 15 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. A permanendifference was recognized in the fiscal year entdetiary 1, 2011 because the
Company recognized an impairment of the same gdbdmd intangible assets associated with the Onaeginess unit for book purposes
in fiscal 2008. The nonrecurring current tax baraf$1.6 million was offset by regular tax experaf $4.2 million on current taxable
income from continuing operations, resulting inuanailative income tax expense of approximately $2iléon (not including the tax
benefit from discontinued operations) for the flgear ended January 2, 2010. The Company alsaiexiged an approximate loss of $0.5
million in Ireland whereby the net effect of a fullluation allowance yielded no tax benefit andéased the Company’s consolidated
effective tax rate.
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16.

17.

18.

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

The Company conducts its operations in multiplejtgisdictions in the United States, Canada, Iréland Puerto Rico. The Company i
its subsidiaries file a consolidated U.S. Federabime tax return and file in various states. Then@any’s federal income tax returns have
been examined through 2007. With limited excepjdhe Company is no longer subject to audits desind local tax authorities for tax
years prior to 2007.

The Company did not have any liabilities for unairttax positions or any known unrecognized taxefienat January 1, 2011 or January
2, 2010.

CONTINGENCIES

The Company is party to an agreement of indemeitgted to the performance of a construction prdjest was managed by a former
customer prior to November 2008 when the initiaitcact was transferred to the Company as the geoen&ractor. The contract price
was approximately $6.2 million and the project wamplete as of January 1, 2011. In the event nfperformance on the construction
project, the Company may be obligated to indemttié/project owners for warranty claims. Managentetieves that any indemnity
claims, if any, would not have a significant adeefisancial impact to the financial position of tempany and its results of operations.

From time to time, the Company is a defendant aingiff in various legal actions which arise in thermal course of business. As such,
the Company is required to assess the likelihoaghgfadverse outcomes to these matters as wetlitestfal ranges of losses and possible
recoveries. The Company may not be covered byanse as it pertains to some or all of these matt&rdetermination of the amount of
the provision required for these commitments anttingencies, if any, which would be charged to eays, is made after careful analysis
of each matter. Once established, a provision chaynge in the future due to new developments angd®in circumstances, and could
increase or decrease the Company’s earnings ipetfied that the changes are made. Included i€tmpany’s accounts payable and
accrued expenses is a provision for losses froal il@gtters aggregating approximately $0.6 milliod 0.7 million as of January 1, 2011
and January 2, 2010, respectively. Asserted clairttsese matters seek approximately $6.8 millodamages as of January 1, 2011.

The Company is also subject to other pending legateedings and claims that arise from time to timehe ordinary course of
business, which may not be covered by insurance.

LEGAL SETTLEMENT

In 2002, the Company recorded a charge of $7.6amitelating to a lawsuit with two former officeasd directors who joined the
Company through an acquisition in 1996. The Corgdéed suit on professional liability claims agatrthe attorneys and law firms who
had served as its counsel in the acquisition t@imgaand in connection with its subsequent dealiwgh the plaintiffs concerning their
various relationships with the Company resultirggrirthat transaction. In 2007, the Company reaehsettlement with one of the law fi
defendants resulting in the recovery of $0.8 miillidn March 2009, the Company entered into aesattht agreement with the remaining
defendants in this lawsuit. The Company receiv@ #illion on March 27, 2009.
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19.STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

20.

21.

On June 8, 2010, the Board of Directors of the Camypapproved a stockholder rights plan and declardigidend distribution of one
Right for each outstanding share of Common Stodk@fCompany. Each Right entitles the holder twipase from the Company a unit
consisting of one one-hundredth of a share (a “Yoitthe Series A Junior Participating Preferrdth&s of the Company. The dividend
was declared on June 8, 2010 (the “Rights Divideadlaration Date”) to stockholders of record athefclose of business on June 21,
2010 (the “Record Date”). Each Right will entithee holder to purchase from the Company, upoteerrence of certain events, one
Unit at a purchase price of $13.50.

Generally, if any person or group acquires berafmivnership of 15% or more of the Company's ontlittg Common Stock (“Stock
Acquisition”), each Right (other than Rights held by such acqgip@rson or group) will be exercisable at the $A®Brchase price. Upc
the acquisition of 50% of the Company, the Boarg mwchange all or part of the Rights for Commonr8&daving a value equal to the
spread between the value of the Common Sharesiissupon exercise of a Right and the exercise priteany time until ten days
following the Stock Acquisition date, the Compangyntedeem the Rights at a price of $.001 per Rife. Rights will expire on June 21,
2011, unless extended by the Board.

RETIREMENT PLANS
Profit Sharing Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) profit sharing gtarthe benefit of eligible employees in the Unitgttes and other similar plans in
Canada and Puerto Rico (the “Retirement Plansfe 401(k) plan includes a cash or deferred arrapgépursuant to Section 401(k) of
the Internal Revenue Code sponsored by the Compgmpvide eligible employees an opportunity toedefompensation and have such
deferred amounts contributed to the 401(k) pla@a pne-tax basis, subject to certain limitationdie Tompany, at the discretion of the
Board of Directors, may make contributions of cessimatch deferrals of compensation by participanthe Retirement

Plans. Contributions to the Retirement Plans ahitg operations by the Company for fiscal yeadednJanuary 1, 2011 and January 2,
2010 were $395 and $545, respectively.

COMMITMENTS
Employment Agreement

The Company has an employment agreement with itsf Executive Officer and President, Leon Kopyt ¢:NKopyt”), which currently
provides for an annual base salary of $660 and atetomary benefits. In addition, the agreemeavides that Mr. Kopys annual bont
is based on EBITDA, defined as earnings before@stetaxes, depreciation, and amortization. Tgreement is for a rolling term of three
years, which automatically extends each year faadtitional one-year period on February 28 of gar. The agreement expires on
February 28, 2014. The employment agreementrisinable by the Company upon Mr. Kopyt's death @adility, or for “good and
sufficient cause,” as defined in the agreement.
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21.

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Termination Benefits Agreement

The Company is party to a Termination Benefits Agnent with Mr. Kopyt, amended on December 12, 200cbmply with the
requirements of section 409A of the Internal Rewe@ode of 1986 (the “Benefits Agreement”). Pursuarthe Benefits Agreement,
following a Change in Control (as defined thereth® remaining term of Mr. Kopyt's employment isezded for five years (th&ektende:
Term”). If Mr. Kopyt's employment is terminatecetieafter by the Company other than for cause, dMbyKopyt for good reason
(including, among other things, a material chamgklr. Kopyt's salary, title, reporting responsitids or a change in office location which
requires Mr. Kopyt to relocate), then the followippvisions take effect: the Company is obligategdy Mr. Kopyt a lump sum equal to
his salary and bonus for the remainder of the Eddrirerm; and the Company shall be obligated to@dyr. Kopyt the amount of any
excise tax associated with the benefits provideditoKopyt under the Benefits Agreement. If sucteamination had taken place as of
January 1, 2011, Mr. Kopyt would have been entittedash payments of approximately $5.9 milliop(esenting salary and excise tax
payments).

Severance Agreement

The Company is party to a Severance AgreementMitiKopyt, amended on December 12, 2007 to comjitly the requirements of
section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (Severance Agreement’J.he agreement provides for certain payments to &de
to Mr. Kopyt and for the continuation of Mr. Kopgtemployee benefits for a specified time afterskiwvice with the Company is
terminated other than “for cause,” as defined em$leverance Agreement. Amounts payable to Mr. Kopgler the Severance Agreement
would be offset and reduced by any amounts recdiyedr. Kopyt after his termination of employmemntder his current employment and
termination benefits agreements, which are suppiéadeand not superseded by the Severance Agreeifiéit. Kopyt had been
terminated as of January 1, 2011, then under thestef the Severance Agreement, and after offge#tiry amounts that would have been
received under his current employment and ternondienefits agreements, he would have been entitledsh payments of
approximately $4.0 million, inclusive of employeentfits.

Operating Leases
The Company leases office facilities and variousi@gent under non-cancelable leases expiring awsudates through September

2015. Certain leases are subject to escalatiarsetabased upon changes in various factors. Tienomn future annual operating lease
commitments for leases with non-cancelable ternexaess of one year, exclusive of operating esoalaharges, are as follows:

Fiscal Years Amount
2011 $3,53¢
2012 2,32(
2013 852
2014 15¢
2015 96
Total $6,96:
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21. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Operating Leases (Continued)

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended Janu&@@11l, and January 2, 2010 was $2,843 and $3,4(Q8:ctxeely.

The Company subleases space to other tenantsiaivaffice locations under cancelable lease agea¢sn During the fiscal years ended

January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010 revenues ohaprately $340 and $343, respectively, were reaeghunder these leasing

arrangements.

22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A director of the Company is a shareholder in afiem that has rendered various legal servicei¢oQGompany. Fees paid to the law firm

have not been significant.

23. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNA UDITED)

Fiscal Year Ended January 1, 2011

Diluted
Income Income from
from Continuing
Gross Operating Continuing Operations
Sales Profit Income Operations Per Shar
1st Quarte $45,32¢ $12,34! $2,08¢ $2,42° $0.1¢
2nd Quarte 42,81 12,457 2,77( 1,65( $0.1:2
3rd Quartel 37,48¢ 10,62: 1,88 1,171 $0.0¢
4th Quarte! 36,39: 10,76: 2,281 1,16¢ $0.0¢
Total $162,02. $46,18° $9,02! $6,417 $0.4¢
Fiscal Year Ended January 2, 2010
Diluted
Income Income from
from Continuing
Gross Operating Continuing Operations
Sales Profit Income Operations Per Shari
1st Quarte $43,31¢ $10,16! ($31)) $5,63¢ $0.4<
2nd Quarte 42,85¢ 11,13¢ 68t 572 0.0<
3rd Quartel 40,42¢ 11,33 94t 58€ 0.0t
4th Quarte! 45,12¢ 11,92« 1,227 928 0.07
Total $171,73. $44,55¢ $2,54¢ $7,71% $0.6(
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineet of RCM Technologies, Inc. (a Nevada cattjor) and Subsidiaries (1
Company) as of January 1, 2011 and the relatecotidated statements of income, changes in stocknsl@quity, comprehensive income and
cash flows for the fiscal year ended January 112@ur audit also included the financial statenfstiedule 1l for the fiscal year ended
January 1, 2011 listed in the index at Part IMnIte5. These consolidated financial statementdgiaadcial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company's managemefitur responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8iq@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were vgaged to perform, an audit of its internal contreér financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigrawnglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsaimopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion audit also includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting the amounts and disclosul
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentatioWe believe that our audit provides a reasonablis bassour opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial
position of RCM Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiade®f January 1, 2011, and the consolidated sesfiits operations and its cash flows for
the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011, in confgrmith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States of America. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedorétfe fiscal year ended January 1, 2011, whenideresl in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, presery fairall material respects, the information satlfi therein.

We have also audited the adjustments to the Jari2)@@10 consolidated financial statements to sgteotively apply the reporting of
discontinued operations, as described in Noteld%ur opinion, such adjustments are appropriateteve been properly applied. We were
engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedwébed January 2, 2010 consolidated financial statesof the company other than with
respect to the adjustments and accordingly, weodl@xpress an opinion or any other form of asswramcthe January 2, 2010 consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

/sl EisnerAmper LLP
EisnerAmper LLP
Edison, New Jersey
February 22, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited, before the effects of the adjustsn® retrospectively apply the reporting of distloued operations described in
Note 15, the accompanying consolidated balance sfié&CM Technologies, Inc. (a Nevada corporatiamdl Subsidiaries (the Company) a:
January 2, 2010 and the related consolidated stetisnof income, changes in stockholders’ equitmme@hensive income and cash flows for
the year then ended (the January 2, 2010 finast@éments before the effects of the adjustmestuidsed in Note 15 are not presented
herein) . These consolidated financial statemamndsfinancial statement schedule are the respditysiti the Company's managemen®©ur
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesobdated financial statements and financial stet® schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were vgaged to perform, an audit of its internal contreér financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigrawnglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsaimopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinioAn audit also includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting the amounts and disclosul
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentatioWe believe that our audit provides a reasonablis bassour opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above, before the effects of thestdjents to retrospectively apply the
reporting of discontinued operations described aeNL5, present fairly, in all material respedtg, tonsolidated financial position of RCM
Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Janua?2@ 0, and the consolidated results of its opanatand its cash flows for the year ended
January 2, 2010, in conformity with accounting pijales generally accepted in the United Statesro&Aca.

We have also audited the Consolidated Financiaé®tant Schedule, Schedule Il — Valuation and Qyiatif Accounts and Reserves
for the year ended January 2, 2010. In our opirtlesrelated financial statement schedule, whasidered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, present fairly, imaterial respects, the information set forth timere

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply@egedures to the adjustments to retrospectivghyyahe reporting of discontinue
operations described in Note 15, and accordingg/da not express an opinion or any other form sfignce about whether such adjustments
are appropriate and have been properly appliedsd hdjustments were audited by EisnerAmper LLP.

/sl Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Edison, New Jersey

March 11, 2010
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SCHEDULE Il

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Fiscal Years Ended January 1, 2011 and January 2020

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per slameunts, unless otherwise indicated)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Balance a Charged tc Balance a
Beginning Costs and End of
Description of Period Expense: Deduction Period
Fiscal Year Ended
January 1, 2011
Allowance for doubtfu
accounts on trade receivab $1,18¢ $31¢ $21¢€ $1,29:
Provision for contingencies f
legal matter: $72¢ $101 $18¢ $63¢
Fiscal Year Ended
January 2, 2010
Allowance for doubtfu
accounts on trade receivab $1,07: $1,14( $1,02¢ $1,18¢
Provision for contingencies for
legal matter: $58¢ $26¢ $12¢ $72¢

F-33




EXHIBIT INDEX

(21)

(23.1)
(23.2)
(31.1)
(31.2)

(32.1)

(32.2)

Subsidiaries of the Registra

Consent of EisnerAmper LLI

Consent of Amper, Politziner & Mattia, LL|

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Requiregt Rule 13-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraaed
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Requireg Rule 13-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraied.

Certification Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1358 Ailopted Pursuant To Section 906 of -
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002
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EXHIBIT 21

Business Support Group of Michigan, Inc.
Cataract, Inc.

Programming Alternatives of Minnesota, Inc.

RCM Technologies Canada Corp.

RCM Technologies Ireland Ltd.

RCM Technologies Ireland Holding Ltd.
RCM Technologies Services Company, Inc.
RCM Technologies (USA), Inc.

RCMT Delaware, Inc.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT




EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have issued our report dated February 22, 20thirespect to the January 1, 2011 consolidateghfifal statements and related
schedules and the adjustments to the January B,fR@ihcial statements to retrospectively applyréqgorting of discontinued operations wh
are included in the Annual Report of RCM Technatsginc. and Subsidiaries on Form 10-K for thediigear ended January 1, 2011. We
hereby consent to the incorporation by referencgaaf report in the Registration Statements of RIEdhnologies, Inc. on Forms&(File No.
333-165482, effective March 15, 2010, File No. 335904, effective September 6, 2007, File No. 38306, effective April 21, 1993, File
No. 33:-80590, effective June 22, 1994, File No. 333-48@8fective March 17, 1998, File No. 333-52206¢eefive December 19, 2000 and
File No. 333-52480, effective December 21, 2000).

[s/ EisnerAmper LLP
EisnerAmper LLP
Edison, New Jersey
February 22, 2011




EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have issued our report dated March 11, 2010 weihect to the January 2, 2010 consolidated finhstatements and related
schedules, before the effects of the adjustmentsttospectively apply the reporting of discontidwperations which are included in the
Annual Report of RCM Technologies, Inc. and Sulasids on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended JantaR011. We hereby consent to the
incorporation by reference of said report in thgiBeation Statements of RCM Technologies, IncForms S-8 (File No. 333-165482,
effective March 15, 2010, File No. 333-145904, efffee September 6, 2007, File No. 333-61306, eiffecApril 21, 1993, File No. 333-80590,
effective June 22, 1994, File No. 333-48089, effecMarch 17, 1998, File No. 333-52206, effectivecBmber 19, 2000 and File No. 333-
52480, effective December 21, 2000).

/s! Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Edison, New Jersey

February 22, 2011




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Leon Kopyt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiom@ny untrue statement of a material fact or donditate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemenid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoiee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durifg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearirial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigsslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changd@registrant’s internal control over financial @efng that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogj and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldlive disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@gmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 22, 2011 /siLeon Kopyt

Leon Kopyt
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Kevin D. Miller, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omittde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts. under which such statements were made, né¢adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoige designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durifg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearirial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigslosure controls and procedures and presenteuisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changd@registrant’s internal control over financial @efng that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogj and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldlive disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@gmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 22, 201 /siKevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, and Secre




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10MR&€M Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for thedal year ended January 1, 2011, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinnhe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Leon Kopytesident & Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section0]. 3% adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sasb@mley Act of 2002, to my knowledge,
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act984, as amended (15 U.S.C. section
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/siLeon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chief Executive Officer
February 22, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqditgy Section 906 has been provided to RCM Techiedodnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdie$ Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10MR&€M Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for thedal year ended January 1, 2011, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissionhe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Kevin D. MilleChief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section0]. 3% adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sasb@mley Act of 2002, to my knowledge,
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act984, as amended (15 U.S.C. section
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/siKevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer
February 22, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqditgy Section 906 has been provided to RCM Techiedodnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdie$ Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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Business Support Group of Michigan, Inc.
Cataract, Inc.
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RCM Technologies Canada Corp.
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RCM Technologies Ireland Holding Ltd.
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RCMT Delaware, Inc.
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have issued our report dated February 22, 20thlraspect to the January 1, 2011 consolidateghfiral statements and related
schedules and the adjustments to the January B,fRGincial statements to retrospectively applyrdgorting of discontinued operations wh
are included in the Annual Report of RCM Technadsgiinc. and Subsidiaries on Form 10-K for thedligear ended January 1, 2011. We
hereby consent to the incorporation by referencgaaf report in the Registration Statements of RlEdhnologies, Inc. on Forms&{File No.
333-165482, effective March 15, 2010, File No. 335904, effective September 6, 2007, File No. 38366, effective April 21, 1993, File
No. 33:-80590, effective June 22, 1994, File No. 333-48@8fctive March 17, 1998, File No. 333-52206¢efive December 19, 2000 and
File No. 333-52480, effective December 21, 2000).

[s/ EisnerAmper LLP
EisnerAmper LLP
Edison, New Jersey
February 22, 2011




EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have issued our report dated March 11, 2010 w&pect to the January 2, 2010 consolidated finhstatements and related
schedules, before the effects of the adjustmensttospectively apply the reporting of discontiduperations which are included in the
Annual Report of RCM Technologies, Inc. and Sulasids on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended JantaR011. We hereby consent to the
incorporation by reference of said report in thgiReeation Statements of RCM Technologies, IncForms S-8 (File No. 333-165482,
effective March 15, 2010, File No. 333-145904, efifee September 6, 2007, File No. 333-61306, eiffechpril 21, 1993, File No. 333-80590,
effective June 22, 1994, File No. 333-48089, effecharch 17, 1998, File No. 333-52206, effectivecember 19, 2000 and File No. 333-
52480, effective December 21, 2000).

[s/ Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Edison, New Jersey

February 22, 2011




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

[, Leon Kopyt, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16flRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notator@ny untrue statement of a material fact or anfitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkgadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoige designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttilsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contants procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changéd@registrant’s internal control over financial oejing that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonabily likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repodj and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
function):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@niifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 22, 2011 /siLeon Kopyt

Leon Kopyt
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

[, Kevin D. Miller, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16flRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omigtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoiee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttilsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contants procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changéd@registrant’s internal control over financial oejing that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonabily likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repodj and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
function):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@niifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 22, 201 /siKevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, and Secre




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10f4R&€M Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for thedal year ended January 1, 2011, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinithe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Leon Kopyte§ident & Chief Executive Officer of the

Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section0] 3% adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sasb@mnley Act of 2002, to my knowledge,

that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ac284, as amended (15 U.S.C. section
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/siLeon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chief Executive Officer
February 22, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Techiedodnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdigd Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10f4R&€M Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) for thedal year ended January 1, 2011, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Kevin D. MilleChief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section0] 3% adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sasb@mnley Act of 2002, to my knowledge,
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ac284, as amended (15 U.S.C. section
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/siKevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer
February 22, 201

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Techiedodnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdigd Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



